SUBMIT ORIGINAL AND FIVE ADDITIONAL COPIES, UNLESS FILING ELECTRONICALLY

APPLICATION FOR RATE ADJUSTMENT BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

For Small Utilities Pursuant to 807 KAR 5:076 (Alternative Rate Filing)

| | (Name of Utility) | | | |
|---------|---|---------|----------------|----|
| | | | | |
| | (Business Mailing Address - Number and Street, or P.O. Box) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Business Mailing Address - City, State, and Zip) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Telephone Number) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | BASIC INFORMATION | | | |
| N I A B | | | | |
| | IE, TITLE, ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER and E-MAIL ADDRESS of the person | to wnom | correspondence | or |
| COII | nmunications concerning this application should be directed: | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Name) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Address - Number and Street or P.O. Box) | | | |
| | , | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Address - City, State, Zip) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Telephone Number) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | (Face) Addison) | | | |
| | (Email Address) | | | |

(For each statement below, the Applicant should check either "YES", "NO", or "NOT APPLICABLE" (N/A))

YES NO N/A

- 1. a. In its immediate past calendar year of operation, Applicant had \$5,000,000 or less in gross annual revenue.
 - b. Applicant operates two or more divisions that provide different types of utility service. In its immediate past calendar year of operation, Applicant had \$5,000,000 or less in gross annual revenue from the division for which a rate adjustment is sought.
- 2. a. Applicant has filed an annual report with the Public Service Commission for the past year.
 - b. Applicant has filed an annual report with the Public Service Commission for the two previous years.
- 3. Applicant's records are kept separate from other commonly-owned enterprises.

- 4. a. Applicant is a corporation that is organized under the laws of the state of ______, is authorized to operate in, and is in good standing in the state of Kentucky.
 - b. Applicant is a limited liability company that is organized under the laws of the state of ______, is authorized to operate in, and is in good standing in the state of Kentucky.
 - c. Applicant is a limited partnership that is organized under the laws of the state of ______, is authorized to operate in, and is in good standing in the state of Kentucky.
 - d. Applicant is a sole proprietorship or partnership.
 - e. Applicant is a water district organized pursuant to KRS Chapter 74.
 - f. Applicant is a water association organized pursuant to KRS Chapter 273.
- A paper copy of this application has been mailed to Office of Rate Intervention, Office of Attorney General, 1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 200, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-8204.
 - b. An electronic copy of this application has been electronically mailed to Office of Rate Intervention, Office of Attorney General at rateintervention@ag.ky.gov.
- 6. a. Applicant has 20 or fewer customers and has mailed written notice of the proposed rate adjustment to each of its customers no later than the date this application was filed with the Public Service Commission. A copy of this notice is attached to this application. (Attach a copy of customer notice.)
 - b. Applicant has more than 20 customers and has included written notice of the proposed rate adjustment with customer bills that were mailed by the date on which the application was filed. A copy of this notice is attached to this application. (Attach a copy of customer notice.)
 - c. Applicant has more than 20 customers and has made arrangements to publish notice once a week for three (3) consecutive weeks in a prominent manner in a newspaper of general circulation in its service area, the first publication having been made by the date on which this Application was filed. A copy of this notice is attached to this application. (Attach a copy of customer notice.)
- 7. Applicant requires a rate adjustment for the reasons set forth in the attachment entitled "Reasons for Application." (Attach completed "Reasons for Application" Attachment.)

| 8. | Applicant proposes to charge the rates that are set forth in the attachment entitled "Current and Proposed Rates." (Attach completed "Current and Proposed Rates" Attachment.) |
|--------|---|
| 9. | Applicant proposes to use its annual report for the immediate past year as the test period to determine the reasonableness of its proposed rates. This annual report is for the 12 months ending December 31, |
| 10. | Applicant has reason to believe that some of the revenue and expense items set forth in its most recent annual report have or will change and proposes to adjust the test period amount of these items to reflect these changes. A statement of the test period amount, expected changes, and reasons for each expected change is set forth in the attachment "Statement of Adjusted Operations." (Attach a completed copy of appropriate "Statement of Adjusted Operations" Attachment and any invoices, letters, contracts, receipts or other documents that support the expected change in costs.) |
| 11. | Based upon test period operations, and considering any known and measurable adjustments, Applicant requires additional revenues of \$ and total revenues from service rates of \$ The manner in which these amounts were calculated is set forth in "Revenue Requirement Calculation" Attachment. (Attach a completed "Revenue Requirement Calculation" Attachment.) |
| 12. | As of the date of the filing of this application, Applicant hadcustomers. |
| 13. | A billing analysis of Applicant's current and proposed rates is attached to this application. (Attach a completed "Billing Analysis" Attachment.) |
| 14. | Applicant's depreciation schedule of utility plant in service is attached. (Attach a schedule that shows per account group: the asset's original cost, accumulated depreciation balance as of the end of the test period, the useful lives assigned to each asset and resulting depreciation expense.) |
| 15. a. | Applicant has outstanding evidences of indebtedness, such as mortgage agreements, promissory notes, or bonds. |
| b. | Applicant has attached to this application a copy of each outstanding evidence of indebtedness (e.g., mortgage agreement, promissory note, bond resolution). |
| C. | Applicant has attached an amortization schedule for each outstanding evidence of indebtedness |

| | | YES NO N/A |
|--------|--|---|
| 16. a. | Applicant is not required to file state and federal tax returns. | |
| b. | Applicant is required to file state and federal tax returns. | |
| C. | Applicant's most recent state and federal tax returns are attached to this Application. (Attach a copy of returns.) | |
| 17. | Approximately (Insert dollar amount or percentage of total utility plant) of Applicant's total utility plant was recovered through the sale of real estate lots or other contributions. | |
| 18. | Applicant has attached a completed Statement of Disclosure of Related Party Transactions for each person who 807 KAR 5:076, §4(h) requires to complete such form. | |
| | I am authorized by the Applicant to sign and file this application on the Applicant's bell completed this application, and to the best of my knowledge all the information contaction and its attachments is true and correct. | |
| | Signed Reprint Signed S | nesemative |
| | Title Chairman | plassomer de la company de la |
| | Chairman | plassometrive |

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS (Indicate all documents submitted by checking box)

Customer Notice of Proposed Rate Adjustment

"Reasons for Application" Attachment"

Current and Proposed Rates" Attachment

"Statement of Adjusted Operations" Attachment

"Revenue Requirements Calculation" Attachment

Attachment Billing Analysis" Attachment

Depreciation Schedules

Outstanding Debt Instruments (i.e., Bond Resolutions, Mortgages, Promissory Notes, Amortization Schedules.)

State Tax Return

Federal Tax Return

Statement of Disclosure of Related Party Transactions - ARF Form 3 *

Table of Contents

- Attachment 1 Customer Notice
- Attachment 2 Statement of Reasons for Application
- Attachment 3 Current and Proposed Rates
- Attachment 4 Statement of Adjusted Operations and Revenue Requirement
- Attachment 5 Billing Analysis at Existing Rates
- Attachment 6 Billing Analysis at Proposed Rates
- Attachment 7 Depreciation
- Attachment 8 Outstanding Debt Instruments
- Attachment 9 Amortization Schedules
- Attachment 10 Statement of Disclosure
- Attachment 11 Board Resolution

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT CUSTOMER NOTICE

In its September 4, 2024 Order in Case No. 2022-00347, the Kentucky Public Service Commission ordered Farmdale Water District to file an application for an adjustment to its rates no later than August 31, 2025. Notice is hereby given that Farmdale Water District expects to file an application with the Kentucky Public Service Commission on or about June 16, 2025, seeking approval of a proposed adjustment to its water rates. The proposed rates shall not become effective until the Public Service Commission has issued an order approving these rates.

| <u>3/8</u> | x 3/ | <u>4" Meter</u> | 10 | <u>ıp</u> | | | | | | |
|--|----------------|-----------------|------------|-----------|------------|---------|--------|--|--|--|
| Monthly Charge | | Current | | Proposed | Difference | | | | | |
| First 2,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 23.93 | \$ | 29.59 | \$ | 5.66 | 23.65% | | | |
| Next 3,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ | 0.01071 | \$ | 0.00205 | 23.67% | | | |
| Next 5,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ | 0.00948 | \$ | 0.00181 | 23.60% | | | |
| Over 10,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ | 0.00826 | \$ | 0.00158 | 23.65% | | | |
| 1 | l" M | eter Tap | | | | | | | | |
| Monthly Charge Current Proposed Difference | | | | | | | | | | |
| First 5,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | l) \$ 49.90 \$ | | 0 \$ 61.70 | | \$ | 11.80 | 23.65% | | | |
| Next 5,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ | 0.01071 | \$ | 0.00205 | 23.67% | | | |
| Next 140,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ | 0.00948 | \$ | 0.00181 | 23.60% | | | |
| Over 150,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ | 0.00826 | \$ | 0.00158 | 23.65% | | | |
| 4 | 1" M | eter Tap | | | | | | | | |
| Monthly Charge | | Current | | Proposed | | Differ | ence | | | |
| First 50,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 400.01 | \$ | 494.63 | \$ | 94.62 | 23.65% | | | |
| Next 100,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ | 0.00948 | \$ | 0.00181 | 23.60% | | | |
| Over 150,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ | 0.00826 | \$ | 0.00158 | 23.65% | | | |
| Monthly Wate | r Los | s Reduct | ioi | n Surcha | rge | | | | | |
| Monthly Charge | | Current | | Proposed | | Differ | ence | | | |
| Per Customer | \$ | - | \$ | 2.73 | \$ | 2.73 | 100.00 | | | |

If the Public Service Commission approves the proposed water rates, then the monthly water bill for a customer with a 5/8" X 3/4"meter tap using an average of 3,751 gallons per month will increase from \$39.09 to \$48.34. This is an increase of \$9.25 or 23.66%. If the Public Service Commission approves the proposed water rates and a Water Loss Reduction Surcharge, then the monthly water bill for a customer using an average of 3,751 gallons per month will increase from \$39.09 to \$51.07. This is an increase of \$11.98 or 30.64%.

If the Public Service Commission approves the proposed water rates, then the monthly water bill for a customer with a 1"meter tap using an average of 8,190 gallons per month will increase from \$77.53 to \$95.86. This is an increase of \$18.34 or 23.66%. If the Public Service Commission approves the proposed water rates and a Water Loss Reduction Surcharge, then the monthly water bill for a customer using an average of 8,190 gallons per month will increase from \$77.53 to \$98.59. This is an increase of \$21.07 or 27.18%.

If the Public Service Commission approves the proposed water rates, then the monthly water bill for a customer with a 4"meter tap using an average of 363,525 gallons per month will increase from \$2,593.36 to \$3,206.35. This is an increase of \$612.99 or 23.64%. If the Public Service Commission approves the proposed water rates and a Water Loss Reduction Surcharge, then the monthly water bill for a customer using an average of 363,525 gallons per month will increase from \$2,593.36 to \$3,209.08. This is an increase of \$615.72 or 23.74%.

The rates contained in this notice are the rates proposed by Farmdale Water District. However, the Public Service Commission may order rates to be charged that differ from these proposed rates. Such action may result in rates for consumers other than the rates shown in this notice.

Farmdale Water District has available for inspection at its office the application which it submitted to the Public Service Commission. A person may examine this application at the District's office located at 100 Highwood Drive, Frankfort, KY 40601. You may contact the office at (502) 223-3562.

A person may also examine the application at the Public Service Commission's offices located at 211 Sower Boulevard, Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., or through the Public Service Commission's website at http://psc.ky.gov. Comments regarding the application may be submitted to the Public Service Commission through its website or by mail to Public Service Commission, PO Box 615, Frankfort, Kentucky, 40602. You may contact the Public Service Commission at 502-564-3940.

A person may submit a timely written request for intervention to the Public Service Commission, PO Box 615, Frankfort, KY, 40602, establishing the grounds for the request including the status and interest of the party. If the Public Service Commission does not receive a written request for intervention within thirty (30) days of the initial publication of this notice, the Public Service Commission may take final action on the application.

Reasons for Application

Farmdale Water District ("the District") is requesting a 23.65 percent rate increase for all of its water customers. The rate increase will generate approximately \$360,954 in additional annual revenue. A Water Loss Reduction Surcharge of \$2.73 per customer per month is included in the application to help lower system losses to more acceptable levels.

The District needs the rate increase for the following reasons:

- 1. 1. To enable the District to pay its annual principal payments on its existing long-term debt from water revenues rather than from depreciation reserves;
- 2. To enable the District to meet the requirements set forth in its existing debt instruments;
- 3. To restore the District to a sound financial condition; and
- 4. To enable the District to enhance its financial capacity so it can continue to operate its system in compliance with the federal Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended in 1996, and KRS Chapter 151.

TABLE C CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES

Farmdale Water District

5/8" x 3/4" Meter Tap

| Monthly Charge | | Current | Proposed | | Difference | | | |
|------------------------------------|----------|---------|---------------|----|------------|--------|--|--|
| First 2,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ 23.93 | | \$ 29.59 | \$ | 5.66 | 23.65% | | |
| Next 3,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ 0.01071 | \$ | 0.00205 | 23.67% | | |
| Next 5,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ 0.00948 | \$ | 0.00181 | 23.60% | | |
| Over 10,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ 0.00826 | \$ | 0.00158 | 23.65% | | |

1" Meter Tap

| Monthly Charge | Monthly Charge Current | | Proposed | Difference | | | |
|------------------------------------|------------------------|---------|---------------|------------|---------|--------|--|
| First 5,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 49.90 | \$ 61.70 | \$ | 11.80 | 23.65% | |
| Next 5,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ 0.01071 | \$ | 0.00205 | 23.67% | |
| Next 140,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ 0.00948 | \$ | 0.00181 | 23.60% | |
| Over 150.000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ 0.00826 | \$ | 0.00158 | 23.65% | |

4" Meter Tap

| Monthly Charge | Current | | Current | | Current | | Proposed | Differ | ence | _ |
|-------------------------------------|---------|---------|---------------|---------------|---------|--|--------------|------------|------|---|
| First 50,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 400.01 | \$ 494.63 | \$ 94.62 | 23.65% | | | | | |
| Next 100,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ 0.00948 | \$ 0.00181 | 23.60% | | | | | |
| Over 150,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ 0.00826 | \$ 0.00158 | 23.65% | | | | | |

Monthly Water Loss Reduction Surcharge

| Monthly Charge | Cur | rrent | Pro | posed | Differe | nce |
|----------------|-----|-------|-----|-------|------------|---------|
| Per Customer | \$ | - | \$ | 2.73 | \$ 2.73 | 100.00% |

Schedule of Adjusted Operations Farmdale Water District

| | 2024 | | | |
|------------------------------------|-----------|--------------------|----------|-----------------|
| | Test Year | <u>Adjustments</u> | | <u>Proforma</u> |
| Operating Revenues | | | | |
| Water Sales | 1,441,455 | 84,549 | Α | 1,526,004 |
| Forfeited Discounts | 46,220 | - | | 46,220 |
| Miscellaneous | 159,869 | (62,314) | В | |
| | | (3,035) | С | |
| | | (29,432) | D | 65,088 |
| Rents from water property | 1,200 | - | | 1,200 |
| Total Operating Revenues | 1,648,744 | (10,232) | | 1,638,512 |
| - ·· - | | | | |
| Operating Expenses | 242.024 | (0.020) | | |
| Salaries and Wages-Employees | 243,031 | (8,830) | J | 205.025 |
| Calarias and Wassa Birestons | 14.600 | 152,735 | E | 386,936 |
| Salaries and Wages-Directors | 14,600 | 22.044 | _ | 14,600 |
| Employee Pensions and Benefits | (4,884) | 32,841 | F | |
| | | 20,316 | G | |
| D. orboroud Wester | 620 700 | 45,734 | Н | 94,008 |
| Purchased Water | 639,708 | (87,374) | K | 552,334 |
| Purchased Power | 22,061 | (3,013) | K | 19,048 |
| Materials and Supplies | 61,014 | (20,602) | J | 40,412 |
| Contractual Services-Accounting | 32,518 | - | | 32,518 |
| Contractual Services-Legal | 114,127 | - | | 114,127 |
| Contractual Services-Water Testing | 6,335 | - | | 6,335 |
| Transportation | 14,256 | - | | 14,256 |
| Insurance-General Liability | 25,802 | - | | 25,802 |
| Insurance-Workers Compensation | 4,018 | - | | 4,018 |
| Advertising | 875 | - | | 875 |
| Rate Case Expenses | - | 10,000 | 0 | 10,000 |
| Miscellansous Expense | 147,410 | - | | 147,410 |
| Total Operating Expenses | 1,320,871 | 141,808 | | 1,462,679 |
| Oth on Formania | | | | |
| Other Expenses | 150 611 | F1 000 | | 202 544 |
| Depreciation | 150,611 | 51,900 | L | 202,511 |
| Taxes | 73,109 | 8,703 | <u> </u> | 81,812 |
| Total Other Expenses | 223,720 | 60,603 | | 284,323 |
| Other Income | | | | |
| Interest Income | 8,631 | - | | 8,631 |
| Non-Utility Income | 16,502 | - | | 16,502 |
| Total Other Income | 25,133 | - | | 25,133 |
| Net Income | 129,286 | (212,643) | | (83,357) |

Schedule of Revenue Requirements Farmdale Water District

| Pro Forma Expenses | | |
|--|---|-----------|
| Total Operating Expenses | | 1,462,679 |
| Total Other Expenses | | 284,323 |
| Average Annual Principal and Interest Payments | M | 177,091 |
| Debt Service Coverage | Ν | 35,418 |
| Total Revenue Requirement | | 1,959,511 |
| Exclusions from Revenue Requirement | | |
| Forfeited Discounts | | 46,220 |
| Miscellaneous | | - |
| Rents from water property | | 1,200 |
| Total Other Income | | 25,133 |
| Total Exclusions from Revenue Requirement | | 72,553 |
| Revenue Required From Sales of Water | | 1,886,958 |
| Less: Revenue from Sales with Present Rates | | 1,526,004 |
| Required Revenue Increase | | 360,954 |
| Overall Percent Increase | | 23.65% |

Table F

<u>Billing Analysis With 2024 Usage and Existing Rates</u>

Farmdale Water District

| | COMPONENT Total Sales Less Adjustments Total Annual Report Difference | BILLS 33,111 | GALLONS 150,945,700 - - | \$ \$ \$ \$ | REVENUE 1,541,226 15,222 1,526,004 1,441,455 84,549 5.87% | Adjustment to SAG | O Billed Revenues | | |
|-------------------------------|---|-----------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|---|-------------------|-------------------|-----------|-------------|
| 01 Residential 3/4 | | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | | 2,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 2,000 | 9,182 | 11,245,400 | | 11,245,400 | - | - | - | 11,245,400 |
| Next | 3,000 | 15,469 | 50,717,500 | | 30,938,000 | 19,779,500 | = | - | 50,717,500 |
| Next | 5,000 | 4,882 | 32,555,400 | | 9,764,000 | 14,646,000 | 8,145,400 | - | 32,555,400 |
| Over | 10,000 | 1,073 | 20,299,300 | | 2,146,000 | 3,219,000 | 5,365,000 | 9,569,300 | 20,299,300 |
| | _ | 30,606 | 114,817,600 | | 54,093,400 | 37,644,500 | 13,510,400 | 9,569,300 | 114,817,600 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| Firs | t 2,000 | 30,606 | 54,093,400 | \$ | 23.93 | \$ 732,402 | | | |
| Nex | t 3,000 | | 37,644,500 | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ 326,001 | | | |
| Nex | • | | 13,510,400 | | 0.00767 | | | | |
| Ove | r 10,000 | | 9,569,300 | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ 63,923 | | | |
| | | 30,606 | 114,817,600 | | | \$ 1,225,951 | | | |
| 02 Residential 1" | | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | | 5,000 | 5,000 | 140,000 | 150,000 | Total |
| First | 5,000 | 319 | 698,900 | | 698,900 | - | - | - | 698,900 |
| Next | | 153 | 1,070,600 | | 765,000 | 305,600 | - | - | 1,070,600 |
| Next | | 126 | 3,128,500 | | 630,000 | 630,000 | 1,868,500 | - | 3,128,500 |
| Over | | - | - | | - | - | - | - | - |
| | _ | 598 | 4,898,000 | | 2,093,900 | 935,600 | 1,868,500 | - | 4,898,000 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| Firs | t 5,000 | 598 | 2,093,900 | \$ | 49.90 | \$ 29,840 | ı | | |
| Nex | t 5,000 | | 935,600 | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ 8,102 | | | |
| Nex | t 140,000 | | 1,868,500 | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ 14,331 | | | |
| Ove | r 150,000 | | - | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ - | | | |
| | _ | 598 | 4,898,000 | | | \$ 52,274 | 1 | | |

| 11 Res 3/4 w/trailer | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
|-------------------------------|----------|-------|------------------------|--------------------------|--------------|---------|---------|---------|
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 4,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 4,000 | 6 | 19,200 | 19,200 | - | - | - | 19,200 |
| Next | 3,000 | 22 | 119,200 | 88,000 | 31,200 | - | - | 119,200 |
| Next | 5,000 | 16 | 134,700 | 64,000 | 48,000 | 22,700 | - | 134,700 |
| Over | 10,000 | 4 | 115,900 | 16,000 | 12,000 | 20,000 | 67,900 | 115,900 |
| | | 48 | 389,000 | 187,200 | 91,200 | 42,700 | 67,900 | 389,000 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 4,000 | 48 | 187,200 \$ | 47.86 \$ | 2,297 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | 40 | 91,200 \$ | 0.00866 \$ | 2,297 790 | | | |
| | | | 42,700 \$ | | | | | |
| Next Over | 5,000 | | 42,700 \$ 67,900 \$ | 0.00767 \$ 0.00668 \$ | 328 454 | | | |
| Ovei | 10,000 | 48 | 389,000 | \$ | 3,868 | | | |
| | | | , | | , | | | |
| 12 Res 1" w/1 trailer | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 10,000 | 5,000 | 140,000 | 155,000 | Total |
| First | 10,000 | 1 | 4,400 | 4,400 | - | - | - | 4,400 |
| Next | 5,000 | - | - | -,400 | - | _ | - | -,400 |
| Next | 140,000 | 1 | 16,400 | 10,000 | 5,000 | 1,400 | - | 16,400 |
| Over | 155,000 | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| | | 2 | 20,800 | 14,400 | 5,000 | 1,400 | | 20,800 |
| | | | | | | • | | • |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 10,000 | 2 | 14,400 \$ | 99.80 \$ | 200 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 5,000 \$ | 0.00866 \$ | 43 | | | |
| Next | 140,000 | | 1,400 \$ | 0.00767 \$ | 11 | | | |
| Over | 155,000 | | - \$ | 0.00668 \$ | - | | | |
| | <u> </u> | 2 | 20,800 | \$ | 254 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 13 Res 3/4" w/2 trailers | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 6,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 6,000 | 12 | 31,200 | 31,200 | - | - | - | 31,200 |
| Next | 3,000 | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| Next | 5,000 | 11 | 123,700 | 66,000 | 33,000 | 24,700 | - | 123,700 |
| Over | 10,000 | 1 | 17,400 | 6,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 3,400 | 17,400 |
| | | 24 | 172,300 | 103,200 | 36,000 | 29,700 | 3,400 | 172,300 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 6,000 | 24 | 103,200 \$ | 71.79 \$ | 1,723 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 36,000 \$ | 0.00866 \$ | 312 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 29,700 \$ | 0.00767 \$ | 228 | | | |
| Over | | | | · | | | | |
| | 10,000 | | 3,400 \$ | 0.00668 \$ | 23 | | | |
| | 10,000 | 24 | 3,400 \$ 172,300 | 0.00668 \$ | 23 2,285 | | | |

| 21 Comm 3/4" | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
|-------------------------------|------------|-------|---------------|------------|-----------|-----------|------------|------------|
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 2,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 2,000 | 1,036 | 599,600 | 599,600 | - | - | - | 599,600 |
| Next | 3,000 | 308 | 981,900 | 616,000 | 365,900 | = | - | 981,900 |
| Next | 5,000 | 92 | 644,800 | 184,000 | 276,000 | 184,800 | - | 644,800 |
| Over | 10,000 | 98 | 2,600,200 | 196,000 | 294,000 | 490,000 | 1,620,200 | 2,600,200 |
| | | 1,534 | 4,826,500 | 1,595,600 | 935,900 | 674,800 | 1,620,200 | 4,826,500 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | ļ |
| First | 2,000 | 1,534 | 1,595,600 \$ | 23.93 \$ | 36,709 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 935,900 \$ | 0.00866 \$ | 8,105 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 674,800 \$ | 0.00767 \$ | 5,176 | | | |
| Over | 10,000 | | 1,620,200 \$ | 0.00668 \$ | 10,823 | | | |
| | | 1,534 | 4,826,500 | \$ | 60,812 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 22 Comm 1" | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | I |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 5,000 | 5,000 | 140,000 | 150,000 | Total |
| First | 5,000 | 90 | 161,900 | 161,900 | - | - | - | 161,900 |
| Next | 5,000 | 45 | 330,000 | 225,000 | 105,000 | - | - | 330,000 |
| Next | 140,000 | 89 | 3,783,700 | 445,000 | 445,000 | 2,893,700 | - | 3,783,700 |
| Over | 150,000 | 15 | 4,014,900 | 75,000 | 75,000 | 2,100,000 | 1,764,900 | 4,014,900 |
| | | 239 | 8,290,500 | 906,900 | 625,000 | 4,993,700 | 1,764,900 | 8,290,500 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 5,000 | 239 | 906,900 \$ | 49.90 \$ | 11,926 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 625,000 \$ | 0.00866 \$ | 5,413 | | | |
| Next | 140,000 | | 4,993,700 \$ | 0.00767 \$ | 38,302 | | | |
| Over | 150,000 | | 1,764,900 \$ | 0.00668 \$ | 11,790 | | | |
| | , <u> </u> | 239 | 8,290,500 | \$ | 67,430 | | | |
| 23 Stewart Home | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 50,000 | 100,000 | 150,000 | 300,000 | Total |
| First | 50,000 | 25 | 348,200 | 348,200 | - | - | - | 348,200 |
| Next | 100,000 | 11 | 796,000 | 550,000 | 246,000 | _ | _ | 796,000 |
| Next | 150,000 | - | - | - | - | _ | _ | 790,000 |
| Over | 300,000 | 12 | 16,305,000 | 600,000 | 1,200,000 | 1,800,000 | 12,705,000 | 16,305,000 |
| 5.5. | | 48 | 17,449,200 | 1,498,200 | 1,446,000 | 1,800,000 | 12,705,000 | 17,449,200 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 50,000 | 48 | 1,498,200 \$ | 400.01 \$ | 19,200 | | | |
| Next | 100,000 | 70 | 1,446,000 \$ | 0.00767 \$ | 11,091 | | | |
| Next | 150,000 | | 1,800,000 \$ | 0.00668 \$ | 12,024 | | | |
| Next | 300,000 | | 12,705,000 \$ | 0.00668 \$ | 84,869 | | | |
| Text | 300,000 | 48 | 17,449,200 | \$ | 127,185 | | | |
| | | 40 | 17,445,200 | Y | 127,103 | | | |

| <u>34 Four Apts</u> CONSUMPTION BY RATE IN | ICREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | First 8,000 | Next 3,000 | Next 5,000 | Over 10,000 | Total |
|---|----------|--------|-------|-----------|----------------|---------------|---------------|----------------|--------|
| | First | 8,000 | 8 | 47,600 | 47,600 | - | - | - | 47,600 |
| | Next | 3,000 | 4 | 34,200 | 32,000 | 2,200 | - | - | 34,200 |
| | Next | 5,000 | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| | Over | 10,000 | - | - | - | - | - | - | - |
| | | | 12 | 81,800 | 79,600 | 2,200 | - | = | 81,800 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCR | EMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| | First | 8,000 | 12 | 79,600 \$ | 95.72 \$ | 1,149 | | | |
| | Next | 3,000 | | 2,200 \$ | 0.00866 \$ | 19 | | | |
| | Next | 5,000 | | - \$ | 0.00767 \$ | - | | | |
| | Next | 10,000 | | - \$ | 0.00668 \$ | - | | | |
| | | | 12 | 81,800 | Ś | 1,168 | | | |

Table G

<u>Billing Analysis With 2024 Usage and Proposed Rates</u>

Farmdale Water District

| | | ct | | | | | | |
|-------------------------------|---|-----------------|---------------------------------------|---|------------|------------|-----------|-------------|
| | COMPONENT Total Sales Less Adjustments Total Revenue Requirement Difference | BILLS 33,111 | GALLONS 150,945,700 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ | REVENUE 1,902,099 15,222 1,886,877 1,886,958 (81) 0.00% | | | | |
| 01 Residential 3/4 | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 2,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 2,000 | 9,182 | 11,245,400 | 11,245,400 | - | - | - | 11,245,400 |
| Next | 3,000 | 15,469 | 50,717,500 | 30,938,000 | 19,779,500 | - | - | 50,717,500 |
| Next | 5,000 | 4,882 | 32,555,400 | 9,764,000 | 14,646,000 | 8,145,400 | - | 32,555,400 |
| Over | 10,000 | 1,073 | 20,299,300 | 2,146,000 | 3,219,000 | 5,365,000 | 9,569,300 | 20,299,300 |
| | | 30,606 | 114,817,600 | 54,093,400 | 37,644,500 | 13,510,400 | 9,569,300 | 114,817,600 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 2,000 | 30,606 | 54,093,400 \$ | 29.59 \$ | 905,632 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 37,644,500 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 403,173 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 13,510,400 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 128,079 | | | |
| Over | 10,000 | | 9,569,300 \$ | 0.00826 \$ | 79,042 | | | |
| | | 30,606 | 114,817,600 | \$ | 1,515,925 | | | |
| 02 Residential 1" | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 5,000 | 5,000 | 140,000 | 150,000 | Total |
| First | 5,000 | 319 | 698,900 | 698,900 | - | - | - | 698,900 |
| Next | 5,000 | 153 | 1,070,600 | 765,000 | 305,600 | - | - | 1,070,600 |
| Next | 140,000 | 126 | 3,128,500 | 630,000 | 630,000 | 1,868,500 | - | 3,128,500 |
| Over | 150,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | - | |
| | | 598 | 4,898,000 | 2,093,900 | 935,600 | 1,868,500 | - | 4,898,000 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 5,000 | 598 | 2,093,900 \$ | 61.70 \$ | 36,897 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 935,600 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 10,020 | | | |
| Next | 140,000 | | 1,868,500 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 17,713 | | | |
| Over | 150,000 | | - \$ | 0.00826 \$ | - | | | |
| | | 598 | 4,898,000 | \$ | 64,630 | | | |

| 11 Res 3/4 w/trailer | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | ! |
|-------------------------------|---------|-------|------------|------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 4,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 4,000 | 6 | 19,200 | 19,200 | - | - | - | 19,200 |
| Next | 3,000 | 22 | 119,200 | 88,000 | 31,200 | - | - | 119,200 |
| Next | 5,000 | 16 | 134,700 | 64,000 | 48,000 | 22,700 | - | 134,700 |
| Over | 10,000 | 4 | 115,900 | 16,000 | 12,000 | 20,000 | 67,900 | 115,900 |
| | | 48 | 389,000 | 187,200 | 91,200 | 42,700 | 67,900 | 389,000 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 4,000 | 48 | 187,200 \$ | 59.18 \$ | 2,841 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 91,200 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 977 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 42,700 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 405 | | | |
| Over | 10,000 | | 67,900 \$ | 0.00826 \$ | 561 | | | ļ |
| | | 48 | 389,000 | \$ | 4,783 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 12 Res 1" w/1 trailer | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 10,000 | 5,000 | 140,000 | 155,000 | Total |
| First | 10,000 | 1 | 4,400 | 4,400 | = | - | - | 4,400 |
| Next | 5,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | - | - |
| Next | 140,000 | 1 | 16,400 | 10,000 | 5,000 | 1,400 | - | 16,400 |
| Over | 155,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | - | - |
| | | 2 | 20,800 | 14,400 | 5,000 | 1,400 | - | 20,800 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 10,000 | 2 | 14,400 \$ | 123.40 \$ | 167 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 5,000 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 54 | | | |
| Next | 140,000 | | 1,400 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 13 | | | |
| Over | 155,000 | | - \$ | 0.00826 \$ | - | | | |
| | | 2 | 20,800 | \$ | 234 | | | |
| | | | | - | | | - | |
| 13 Res 3/4" w/2 trailers | LICACE | BULC | CALLONG | First | Next | Next | Over | T-1-1 |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 6,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 6,000 | 12 | 31,200 | 31,200 | - | - | - | 31,200 |
| Next | 3,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | - | - |
| Next | 5,000 | 11 | 123,700 | 66,000 | 33,000 | 24,700 | - | 123,700 |
| Over | 10,000 | 1 | 17,400 | 6,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 3,400 | 17,400 |
| | | 24 | 172,300 | 103,200 | 36,000 | 29,700 | 3,400 | 172,300 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 6,000 | 24 | 103,200 \$ | 88.77 \$ | 1,418 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 36,000 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 386 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 29,700 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 282 | | | |
| Over | | | | | | | | |
| Over | 10,000 | | 3,400 \$ | 0.00826 \$ | 28 | | | |

| 21 Comm 3/4" | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
|-------------------------------|---------|-------|---------------|------------|-----------|-----------|------------|------------|
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 2,000 | 3,000 | 5,000 | 10,000 | Total |
| First | 2,000 | 1,036 | 599,600 | 599,600 | = | - | - | 599,600 |
| Next | 3,000 | 308 | 981,900 | 616,000 | 365,900 | - | - | 981,900 |
| Next | 5,000 | 92 | 644,800 | 184,000 | 276,000 | 184,800 | - | 644,800 |
| Over | 10,000 | 98 | 2,600,200 | 196,000 | 294,000 | 490,000 | 1,620,200 | 2,600,200 |
| | | 1,534 | 4,826,500 | 1,595,600 | 935,900 | 674,800 | 1,620,200 | 4,826,500 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 2,000 | 1,534 | 1,595,600 \$ | 29.59 \$ | 45,391 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 935,900 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 10,023 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 674,800 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 6,397 | | | |
| Over | 10,000 | | 1,620,200 \$ | 0.00826 \$ | 13,383 | | | |
| | | 1,534 | 4,826,500 | \$ | 75,195 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| 22 Comm 1" | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 5,000 | 5,000 | 140,000 | 150,000 | Total |
| First | 5,000 | 90 | 161,900 | 161,900 | - | - | - | 161,900 |
| Next | 5,000 | 45 | 330,000 | 225,000 | 105,000 | - | - | 330,000 |
| Next | 140,000 | 89 | 3,783,700 | 445,000 | 445,000 | 2,893,700 | - | 3,783,700 |
| Over | 150,000 | 15 | 4,014,900 | 75,000 | 75,000 | 2,100,000 | 1,764,900 | 4,014,900 |
| | | 239 | 8,290,500 | 906,900 | 625,000 | 4,993,700 | 1,764,900 | 8,290,500 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 5,000 | 239 | 906,900 \$ | 61.70 \$ | 14,746 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | 625,000 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 6,694 | | | |
| Next | 140,000 | | 4,993,700 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 47,340 | | | |
| Over | 150,000 | | 1,764,900 \$ | 0.00826 \$ | 14,578 | | | |
| | · | 239 | 8,290,500 | \$ | 83,358 | | | |
| 23 Stewart Home | | | | First | Next | Next | Over | |
| CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | 50,000 | 100,000 | 150,000 | 300,000 | Total |
| First | 50,000 | 25 | 348,200 | 348,200 | - | - | - | 348,200 |
| Next | 100,000 | 11 | 796,000 | 550,000 | 246,000 | _ | _ | 796,000 |
| Next | 150,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | _ | - |
| Over | 300,000 | 12 | 16,305,000 | 600,000 | 1,200,000 | 1,800,000 | 12,705,000 | 16,305,000 |
| | | 48 | 17,449,200 | 1,498,200 | 1,446,000 | 1,800,000 | 12,705,000 | 17,449,200 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 50,000 | 48 | 1,498,200 \$ | 494.63 \$ | 23,742 | | | |
| Next | 100,000 | - | 1,446,000 \$ | 0.00948 \$ | 13,708 | | | |
| Next | 150,000 | | 1,800,000 \$ | 0.00668 \$ | 12,024 | | | |
| Next | 300,000 | | 12,705,000 \$ | 0.00826 \$ | 104,943 | | | |
| | · — | 48 | 17,449,200 | \$ | 154,418 | | | |
| | | _ | , -, | ' | , - | | | |

| 34 Four Apts CONSUMPTION BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | First 8,000 | Next 3,000 | Next 5,000 | Over 10,000 | Total |
|--|--------|-------|-----------|----------------|---------------|---------------|----------------|--------|
| | | | | | 3,000 | 3,000 | 10,000 | |
| First | 8,000 | 8 | 47,600 | 47,600 | - | - | - | 47,600 |
| Next | 3,000 | 4 | 34,200 | 32,000 | 2,200 | - | - | 34,200 |
| Next | 5,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | - | - |
| Over | 10,000 | 0 | 0 | - | - | - | - | - |
| | | 12 | 81,800 | 79,600 | 2,200 | - | - | 81,800 |
| REVENUE BY RATE INCREMENT | USAGE | BILLS | GALLONS | RATE | REVENUE | | | |
| First | 8,000 | 12 | 79,600 \$ | 118.36 \$ | 1,420 | | | |
| Next | 3,000 | | 2,200 \$ | 0.01071 \$ | 24 | | | |
| Next | 5,000 | | - \$ | 0.00948 \$ | - | | | |
| Next | 10,000 | | - \$ | 0.00826 \$ | - | | | |
| | | 12 | 81,800 | \$ | 1,444 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |

Table A DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS

Farmdale Water District

| | | | | | | | | <u>Depreciation</u> |
|------------------------------------|----------------|-----------------|-------------|----------|-----------|-----------------|------------|---------------------|
| | Date in | Original | | epo | rted | <u>Proforma</u> | | <u>Expense</u> |
| Asset | <u>Service</u> | Cost * | <u>Life</u> | <u>D</u> | epr. Exp. | <u>Life</u> | Depr. Exp. | <u>Adjustment</u> |
| General Plant | | | | | | | | |
| Structures & Improvements | varies | \$ 45,026 | varies | \$ | 1,759 | 37.5 | 1,201 | (558) |
| Communication & Computer Eqmt. | | | | | | 10.0 | | |
| Office Furniture & Equipment | varies | \$ 133,082 | varies | \$ | 4,243 | 22.5 | 5,915 | 1,672 |
| Power Operated Equipment | varies | \$ 88,994 | varies | \$ | 14,630 | 12.5 | 7,119 | (7,510) |
| Tools, Shop, & Garage Equipment | | | | | | 17.5 | | |
| Source of Supply Plant | | | | | | | | |
| Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs | | | | | | 62.5 | | |
| Supply Mains | | | | | | 62.5 | | |
| Pumping Plant | | | | | | | | |
| Structures & Improvements | | | | | | 37.5 | | |
| Telemetry | | | | | | 10.0 | | |
| Pumping Equipment | varies | \$ 31,480 | varies | \$ | 899 | 20.0 | 1,574 | 675 |
| Transmission & Distribution Plant | | | | | | | | |
| Hydrants | varies | \$ 41,067 | varies | \$ | 821 | 50.0 | 821 | - |
| Transmission & Distribution Mains | varies | \$ 3,874,089 | varies | \$ | 61,668 | 62.5 | 61,985 | 317 |
| Meters | varies | \$ 1,096,560 | varies | \$ | 27,677 | 40.0 | 27,414 | (263) |
| Meter Installations | varies | \$ 169,216 | varies | \$ | 4,486 | 45.0 | 3,760 | (725) |
| Pump Equipment | | | | | | 20.0 | | |
| Tank Fence | | | | | | 37.5 | | |
| Services | | | | | | 40.0 | | |
| Reservoirs & Tanks | varies | \$ 1,149,590 | varies | \$ | 25,736 | 45.0 | 25,546 | (189) |
| Balance of A/C Project | varies | \$ 1,778,784 | varies | \$ | - | 45.0 | 39,529 | 39,529 |
| Balance of Meter Project | varies | \$ 413,744 | varies | \$ | - | 20.0 | 20,687 | 20,687 |
| Transportation Equipment | | | | | | | | |
| Entire Group | varies | \$ 48,711 | varies | \$ | 8,729 | 7.0 | 6,959 | (1,770) |
| TOTALS | | \$ 8,870,342 | | \$ | 150,648 | | \$ 202,511 | \$ 51,863 |

 $^{^{}st}$ Includes only costs associated with assets that contributed to depreciation expense in the test year.

| Allowed Depreciation | \$ | 202,511 |
|------------------------------------|----|---------|
| Less: Reported Depreciation | \$ | 150,611 |
| Adjustment to Allowed Depreciation | Ś | 51.900 |

BOND RESOLUTION

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

AUTHORIZING

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013

IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF

\$1,858,000

CONSISTING OF

\$1,668,000 OF SERIES A BONDS

AND

\$190,000 OF SERIES B BONDS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ARTICLE 1. | DEFINITIONS; PURPOSE; AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS; | |
|--------------|---|---|
| | SECURITY | 3 |
| Section 101. | Definitions | 3 |
| Section 102. | Purpose : | 5 |
| Section 103. | | 5 |
| Section 104. | | 5 |
| Section 105. | | 5 |
| Section 106. | | 6 |
| Section 107. | Lien on Contracts | 5 |
| ARTICLE 2. | THE BONDS; BOND FORM; PREPAYMENT | 7 |
| Section 201. | Principal Payments | 7 |
| Section 202. | | 7 |
| Section 203. | Place of Payment and Manner of Execution | 7 |
| Section 204. | Provisions as to Prepayment. | |
| ARTICLE 3. | CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT; INTERIM FINANCING; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS; ARBITRAGE LIMITATIONS | 8 |
| Section 301. | Construction Account; Application of Proceeds of Bonds; Other | |
| | Transfers and Deposits | 8 |
| A. | Covenants Applicable if RD Purchases Current Bonds | 8 |
| В. | Application of Proceeds of Current Bonds | |
| Section 302. | Interim Financing Authorization | 0 |
| A. | Interim Financing | 0 |
| В. | Multiple Advances by RD | 2 |
| Section 303. | Arbitrage Limitations on Investment of Proceeds | 2 |
| ARTICLE 4. | FLOW OF FUNDS | 4 |
| Section 401. | Funds | 4 |
| Section 402. | Flow of Funds | 4 |
| A. | Revenue Fund | 4 |
| В. | Sinking Fund | 4 |

| C. | Debt Reserve Fund | 15 | |
|---------------|---|-----|--|
| D. | Operation and Maintenance Fund. | | |
| E. | Monthly Principal and Interest Payments if Requested by RD | 15 | |
| F. | Surplus Funds | 16 | |
| G. | Investment and Miscellaneous Provisions | 16 | |
| ARTICLE 5. | COVENANTS OF DISTRICT | 17 | |
| Section 501. | Rates and Charges. | 17 | |
| Section 502. | Books and Accounts; Audit | 17 | |
| Section 503. | System to Continue to be Operated on Fiscal Year Basis; Annual | | |
| | Budget. | 17 | |
| Section 504. | General Covenants | 18 | |
| Section 505. | Other Covenants Applicable So Long as RD Owns Any Bonds | 19 | |
| Section 506. | Insurance on Motors, Tanks and Structures | | |
| ARTICLE 6. | INFERIOR BONDS AND PARITY BONDS | 20 | |
| Section 601. | Inferior Bonds | 20 | |
| Section 602. | Parity Bonds to Complete the Project | | |
| Section 603. | Parity Bonds to Finance Future Improvements | | |
| Section 604. | Covenants to be Complied with at Time of Issuance of Parity | | |
| 2.53.7322 | Bonds | | |
| Section 605. | Prepayment Provisions Applicable to Parity Bonds | | |
| Section 606. | Consent of the RD Regarding Future Bonds. | 22 | |
| Section 607. | Priority of Lien; Permissible Disposition of Surplus or Obsolete | 6 | |
| | Facilities | 22 | |
| ARTICLE 7. | DEFAULT AND CONSEQUENCES | 24 | |
| Section 701. | Events of Default. | 24 | |
| Section 702. | Consequences of Event of Default | 24 | |
| ARTICLE 8. | CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS; GRANT APPROVAL; | | |
| | MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS | 25 | |
| Section 801. | Resolution Contractual with Bondowners | 25 | |
| Section 802. | All Current Bonds are Equal. | 25 | |
| Section 803. | District Obligated to Refund Current Bonds Owned by | | |
| Section 804. | Government Whenever Feasible; Defeasement Prohibited Authorization, Ratification and Confirmation of Approval and | 25 | |
| 222.311 55 11 | Execution of Various Documents | 25 | |
| Section 805. | Authorization of Condemnation to Acquire Easements and/or | -10 | |
| | Sites. | 26 | |

| ARTICLE 9. | SALE OF CURRENT BONDS | 28 |
|---------------|---|----|
| Section 901. | Sale of Current Bonds. | |
| Section 902. | Adjustment in Maturities, Prepayment Provisions and Other | |
| | Dates, with Consent of Purchaser if Delivery is Delayed | 28 |
| ARTICLE 10. | CONCLUDING PROVISIONS | 29 |
| Section 1001. | Covenant of District to Take All Necessary Action To Assure | |
| | Compliance with the Code | 29 |
| Section 1002. | Severability Clause | 30 |
| Section 1003. | All Provisions in Conflict Repealed | 30 |
| Section 1004. | Effective Immediately Upon Adoption | |
| | | |

EXHIBIT A - Schedule of Principal Payments EXHIBIT B - Form of Fully Registered Bond EXHIBIT C - Requisition Certificate

BOND RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION OF THE FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF \$1,858,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013, CONSISTING OF \$1,668,000 OF SERIES A BONDS AND \$190,000 OF SERIES B BONDS FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE COST (NOT OTHERWISE PROVIDED) OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF EXTENSIONS, ADDITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE EXISTING WATERWORKS SYSTEM OF SAID DISTRICT; SETTING FORTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS UPON WHICH SAID BONDS MAY BE ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION, SEGREGATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE REVENUES OF SAID WATERWORKS SYSTEM; AND PROVIDING FOR AN ADVERTISED, PUBLIC, COMPETITIVE SALE OF SAID BONDS.

WHEREAS, the waterworks system (the "System") of the Farmdale Water District (the "District") is owned and operated by said District pursuant to Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the "Act"), and

WHEREAS, it is the desire and intent of the District at this time to authorize and provide for the issuance of revenue bonds in the principal amount of \$1,858,000, consisting of \$1,668,000 of Series A Bonds and \$190,000 of Series B Bonds (collectively, the "Current Bonds"), for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the construction of extensions, additions and improvements to the System of the District, in accordance with plans and specifications prepared by HMB Professional Engineers, Inc. and to prescribe the covenants of the District, the rights of Bondowners and the details of the issuance and sale of the proposed Current Bonds, and

WHEREAS, the Public Service Commission of Kentucky is in the process of granting to the District a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity, authorizing the construction of said extensions, additions and improvements, and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Current Bonds will be supplemented by Grant Proceeds (as hereinafter defined) in the amount of approximately \$1,712,000, and by a contribution by the District in the amount of at least \$500,000, to provide the total cost of such construction,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT, AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS; PURPOSE; AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS; SECURITY.

Section 101. Definitions. As used in this Resolution, unless the context requires otherwise:

"Act" refers to Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.

"Beginning Month" refers to the month following the month in which the Current Bonds authorized herein are issued, sold and delivered to the Purchaser thereof.

"Bond Counsel" refers to an attorney or firm of attorneys recognized nationally as experts in the field of municipal bond law and shall be deemed to refer to Rubin & Hays, Louisville, Kentucky, or their successors.

"Bondowner" or "Owner" refer to registered Owners of the Current Bonds at the time issued and outstanding hereunder.

"Bonds" collectively refers to the outstanding Current Bonds and the Parity Bonds.

"Chairman" refers to the elected or appointed Chairman or Chairperson of the Commission.

"Code" refers to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations relating thereto.

"Commission" refers to the Board of Commissioners of the District, or such other body as shall be the governing body of said District under the laws of Kentucky at any given time.

"Construction Account" refers to the Farmdale Water District Waterworks Construction Account, created in Section 301(B) of this Current Bond Resolution.

"Contractors" refers to the general contractors who have been employed by the District to construct the Project.

"Current Bond Resolution" or "Resolution" refer to this Resolution authorizing the Current Bonds.

"Current Bonds" refers to the \$1,858,000 of Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, consisting of \$1,668,000 of Series A Bonds and \$190,000 of Series B Bonds authorized by this Resolution, to be dated as of the date of issuance thereof.

"Current Sinking Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Waterworks Sinking Fund, created in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"Debt Reserve Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Debt Reserve Fund, described in Section 402 of this Resolution.

"Depository Bank" refers to the bank, which shall be a member of the FDIC, which bank shall be determined by the District.

"District" refers to the Farmdale Water District of Franklin County, Kentucky.

"Engineers" refers to the Engineers or any one of them, who prepared the plans and specifications for the construction of the Project and who will supervise the construction thereof and/or will furnish full time resident inspection of the construction of the Project, and shall be deemed to refer to HMB Professional Engineers, Inc., or a member of said firm, or their successors.

"Event of Default" refers to one or more of the Events of Default set forth in Section 701 of this Resolution.

"FDIC" refers to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or its successors.

"Fiscal Year" refers to the annual accounting period of the District, beginning on January 1, and ending on December 31, of each year.

"Funds" refers to the Construction Account, the Revenue Fund, the Sinking Fund, the Debt Reserve Fund and the Operation and Maintenance Fund.

"Government" refers to the United States of America, or any agency thereof, including RD.

"Grant Proceeds" refers to the proceeds of the KIA Grant.

"Independent Consulting Engineer" refers to a consulting engineer or a firm of consulting engineers of recognized excellent reputation in the field of waterworks system engineering, and such definition includes the Engineers named above.

"Interim Lender" refers to Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation, Bowling Green, Kentucky, its successors or assigns; or any other financial institution or governmental agency approved by the District.

"KIA Grant" refers to the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority grant to the District in the amount of \$1,212,000.

"Local Counsel" refers to Jim Boyd, Esq., Frankfort, Kentucky, or any other attorney or firm of attorneys designated by the District.

"Multiple Advances" refers to the advance of loan funds from the RD as described in Section 302 of this Resolution.

"Note" refers to a single note or any number of notes, in such form as may be prescribed by the Interim Lender, including any revenue bond anticipation notes issued pursuant to Chapter 58 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, including any renewal or extensions of the Note, issued by the

District evidencing the interim financing for the Project as prescribed in Section 302 of this Resolution.

"Operation and Maintenance Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Operation and Maintenance Fund described in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"Outstanding Bonds" refers to the outstanding Bonds, and does not refer to, nor include, any Bonds for the payment of the principal and interest of which sufficient funds will have been deposited and earmarked for payment of Bonds; provided all Outstanding Bonds of any series held by RD shall be deemed to constitute Outstanding Bonds until paid regardless of the deposit of funds to pay for same.

"Parity Bonds" refers to bonds which may be issued in the future which, pursuant to this Resolution, rank on a basis of parity with the outstanding Bonds, as to priority, security and source of payment, and does not refer to bonds which might be issued so as to rank inferior to the security and source of payment of the outstanding Bonds.

"Project" refers specifically to the construction of the currently proposed extensions, additions and improvements to the System of the District, which Project is being financed by the Current Bonds and by other funds.

"Purchaser" refers to the agency, person, firm or firms, or their successors, to whom the Current Bonds herein authorized are awarded at the public sale of the Current Bonds.

"RD" refers to the Rural Development of the Department of Agriculture of the United States of America.

"Required Signatures" refers to the signatures necessary to be obtained with reference to the approval of the expenditures to be made from the Construction Account, which required signatures shall consist of the signatures of (1) the Chairman; (2) the Engineers; and (3) the Purchaser; provided, however, any expenditures for issuance and administrative costs and the costs of any equipment which is not permanently affixed to the real estate shall not require the signature or the approval of the Engineers.

"Revenue Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Revenue Fund, described in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"Secretary" refers to the elected or appointed Secretary of the Commission.

"Sinking Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Sinking Fund, described in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"System" refers to the existing waterworks system of the District, together with all extensions, additions and improvements to said System.

"Treasurer" refers to the elected or appointed Treasurer of the Commission.

"U.S. Obligations" refers to bonds or notes which are the direct obligations of the United States of America, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States of America.

All words and terms importing the singular number shall, where the context requires, import the plural number and vice versa. Unless otherwise indicated, references to Articles or Sections refers to those in this Resolution.

Section 102. Purpose. The Current Bonds shall be issued for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the Project, as set out in the plans and specifications prepared by the Engineers. The Commission hereby declares the System of the District, including the extensions, additions and improvements to be constructed, to constitute a revenue producing public project, and said System shall continue to be owned, controlled, operated and maintained by the District as a revenue producing public project pursuant to the Act, so long as any Bonds remain outstanding.

Section 103. Construction Award Approved; Work Authorized. The Commission hereby authorizes, approves, ratifies and confirms its previous action in advertising for and taking steps toward awarding the contracts for the construction of the Project to the lowest and best bidders, and further approves the action of the District officials in entering into formal contracts with said bidders, subject to the necessary approvals being obtained. Authority is hereby given for undertaking the construction of the Project according to the plans and specifications heretofore prepared by the Engineers for the District, after all necessary approvals have been obtained.

<u>Section 104. Declaration of Period of Usefulness.</u> The Commission hereby declares that the period of usefulness of the System is more than forty (40) years from the date of completion of the Project.

Section 105. Authorization of Bonds. The District has heretofore determined that the total cost of the Project, including preliminary expenses, land and rights-of-way, engineering expense, capitalized interest during construction, legal and administrative costs, publication costs, initial deposits required and all incidental expenses, will not exceed \$3,570,000. Therefore, it is hereby determined to be necessary in order for the District to finance the cost (not otherwise provided) of the Project that the District issue a total of \$1,858,000 of Current Bonds, based on the following calculation:

Total cost of Project

\$3,570,000

Less:

KIA Grant Connection Charges \$1,212,000 500,000

Total Non-Bond Funds:

(1,712,000)

Balance to be financed by Current Bonds

\$1,858,000

Accordingly, for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the Project, under the provisions of the Act, there is hereby authorized to be issued and sold \$1,858,000 principal amount of Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, consisting of \$1,668,000 of Series A Bonds and \$190,000 of Series B Bonds.

The Current Bonds shall be dated as of the date of delivery to the Purchaser thereof; shall bear interest from such date at such interest rate as may be fixed by supplemental resolution as a result of the advertised sale and competitive bidding for such Current Bonds, as hereinafter provided; and shall be issued and delivered as prescribed in Section 202 hereof.

Interest on the Current Bonds shall be payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year, provided that the first interest payment period will cover interest only from the date of delivery of the Current Bonds to the ensuing January 1 or July 1, as the case may be. Principal of the Current Bonds shall be payable on January 1 of each of the respective years until maturity, as set out in Section 201 hereof.

Section 106. Current Bonds Shall be Payable Out of Gross Revenues. The Current Bonds, and any additional Parity Bonds that may be issued under the conditions and restrictions hereinafter set forth, shall be secured by and payable out of the gross revenues of the System.

Section 107. Lien on Contracts. In addition to the revenue pledge securing the Bonds, a lien is hereby created and granted in favor of the Bondowners on all contracts, and on all other rights of the District pertaining to the System, enforceable by assignment to any receiver or other operator proceeding by authority of any court.

ARTICLE 2. THE BONDS; BOND FORM; PREPAYMENT.

Section 201. Principal Payments. Principal payments due on the Current Bonds shall be as set forth in the schedule of maturities set out in Exhibit A attached to this Resolution and incorporated herein.

Section 202. Issuance of Current Bonds; Bond Form. The Purchaser of the Current Bonds at the public sale shall take delivery of the Current Bonds in the form of one or more fully registered bonds, as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein, amounting in the aggregate to the principal amount of the Current Bonds authorized herein, maturing as to principal as set out in Section 201. The Current Bonds shall be numbered R-1 and consecutively upward thereafter. Such Current Bonds shall, upon appropriate execution on behalf of the District as prescribed, constitute the entire bond issue herein authorized, shall be negotiable (subject to registration requirements as to transferability), registered as to principal and interest and payable as directed by the registered Owner.

Section 203. Place of Payment and Manner of Execution. Both principal of and interest on the Current Bonds shall be payable at the place and in the manner set out in the form of such Current Bond. The Current Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the District by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman of the District, with the Corporate Seal of the District affixed thereto and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of said District.

If either of the officers whose signatures appear on the Current Bonds ceases to be such officer before delivery of said Current Bonds, such signatures shall nevertheless be valid for all purposes the same as if such officers had remained in office until delivery.

Section 204. Provisions as to Prepayment. Except when all of the Current Bonds are held by the Government, principal maturities falling due prior to January 1, 2023, shall not be subject to prepayment. Principal maturities falling due on and after January 1, 2023, shall be subject to prepayment by the District on any date falling on and after January 1, 2022, at par plus accrued interest, without any prepayment penalty.

So long as all of the Current Bonds are owned by the Government, all or any of the Current Bonds, or in a multiple of \$100, may be prepaid at any time in inverse chronological order of the principal maturities due, at par plus accrued interest without any prepayment penalty.

Notice of such prepayment shall be given by certified mail to the Bondowner or his assignee, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for prepayment. Notice of such prepayment may be waived with the written consent of the Bondowner.

ARTICLE 3. CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT; INTERIM FINANCING; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS; ARBITRAGE LIMITATIONS.

Section 301. Construction Account; Application of Proceeds of Bonds; Other Transfers and Deposits. The Treasurer, or such other District official as shall be designated by the Commission, shall be the custodian of all funds belonging to and associated with the System. All moneys in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC in the Construction Account shall be secured by the Depository Bank in accordance with U. S. Treasury Department Circular No. 176. The officials of the District entrusted with the receipt and disbursement of revenues of the System and the custody of valuable property shall be covered by a fidelity bond in the amount of not less than \$98,500 (the "Fidelity Bond"), or such larger amount as the RD may require, which Fidelity Bond shall be effective and secured by a surety company approved by the RD so long as it is owner of any of the Current Bonds. The RD and the District shall be named co-obligees in such Fidelity Bond and the amount thereof shall not be reduced without the written consent of the RD. Whenever sums in the Funds shall exceed \$98,500, the Fidelity Bond shall be increased accordingly as requested by and with the approval of the RD.

- A. Covenants Applicable if RD Purchases Current Bonds. It is acknowledged that all covenants herein with reference to the necessity for approval of the RD, the necessity of observing RD regulations and procedures and the necessity of using RD forms (the "RD Forms"), shall apply only if the RD is the Purchaser of the Current Bonds and only so long as the RD holds the Current Bonds thereafter. In the event that the RD shall not be the Purchaser of the Current Bonds, or, after purchasing same, shall sell or transfer the Current Bonds to an Owner who shall not be the Government, all covenants herein with reference to the necessity for approval of the RD, the necessity of observing RD regulations and procedures, and the necessity of using RD Forms, shall not be applicable.
- B. Application of Proceeds of Current Bonds. The proceeds of the Current Bonds shall be applied as follows:
 - (1) Payment of Interim Financing, Costs of Project and Costs of Issuance. Simultaneously with the delivery of the Current Bonds, there shall immediately be paid to the Interim Lender (or the RD if Multiple Advances are made) an amount sufficient to pay principal of and interest on any temporary loans borrowed by the District in anticipation of the sale and delivery of the Current Bonds and/or of the receipt of Grant Proceeds. Also, at the time of delivery of the Current Bonds, there shall be paid all amounts then due and payable in connection with the costs of the Project and in connection with the issuance of the Current Bonds.
 - (2) Construction Account. If and to the extent that the proceeds of the Current Bonds shall be in excess of the amount necessary to pay the interest, principal and costs referred to in subparagraph B(1) of this Section, such excess amount shall immediately be deposited in the "Farmdale Water District Waterworks Construction Account" hereby created, which shall be established at the Depository Bank. There shall also be deposited in said Construction Account the Grant Proceeds, as and when received, or said Grant Proceeds

may be applied, to the extent necessary, to liquidate or reduce any interim financing owed by the District at the time of receipt of Grant Proceeds.

(3) Withdrawal of Funds From Construction Account. Prior to the expenditure by the District of any moneys from the Construction Account, the District must obtain written approval from the RD as to such expenditures, if the RD is the Owner of any Outstanding Bonds. The proceeds of said Construction Account shall be withdrawn only on checks signed by the Chairman, the Treasurer (or by such other official of the District as may be authorized by the Commission), provided such official shall be covered by the Fidelity Bond required by Section 301 of this Resolution, in payment for services and/or materials supplied in connection with the Project, as evidenced by (1) a Requisition Certificate; and (2) invoices and/or partial payment estimates bearing the written approval of the Engineers and the Chairman (or by such other official of the District as may be authorized by the Commission), and which invoices and/or partial payment estimates must have been reviewed and approved for payment by the designated RD official.

Written approval or certification of the Engineers shall not be required for matters not under the jurisdiction of the Engineers, such as legal fees, land acquisition and related items.

During construction, the District shall disburse Construction Account funds in a manner consistent with RD Instruction 1780.

The District shall prepare and submit any and all RD Forms required by the RD. Periodic audits of the District's Construction Account records shall be made by RD as determined by it to be necessary.

- (4) Transfer of Capitalized Interest to Sinking Fund. There shall be transferred from the Construction Account an amount sufficient to provide for capitalized interest (initially estimated at \$23,000) during the construction of the Project, as approved by the Engineers and by the RD. If and to the extent not theretofore expended in paying interest on interim financing and if and to the extent then needed to pay interest during the remaining period of construction of the Project, such amount so transferred from the Construction Account shall be deposited in the Sinking Fund.
- disbursement of amounts on deposit in the Construction Account, all such funds, or such portion of said amounts on deposit in said Construction Account as is designated by the Commission, shall be invested for the benefit of such Construction Account in Certificates of Deposit, savings accounts or U.S. Obligations which may be converted readily into cash, having a maturity date prior to the date when the sums invested will be needed for costs of the Project (as determined by the Engineers, the Chairman and the RD), provided that to the extent that any amounts on deposit in said Depository Bank shall cause the total deposits of the District in said Depository Bank to exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, the same shall be continuously secured by a valid pledge of U.S. Obligations, having an equivalent

market value, in conformity with Section 66.480 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. Investments in Certificates of Deposit or savings accounts may be made only in such Certificates or accounts of an FDIC bank. Any such investments will be a part of the Construction Account, and income from such investments will be credited to the Construction Account. All such investments shall be subject to the limitations set out in Section 303 hereof.

- Payment. Prior to the delivery of the Current Bonds, if the RD is the Purchaser of the Current Bonds, the District will be required to provide the RD with statements from the Contractors, Engineers and attorneys for the District that they have been paid to date in accordance with their contract or other agreements and, in the case of any Contractor, that he has paid his suppliers and subcontractors. Any exceptions must be authorized under RD Instruction 1780.
- of Project. When the Project has been completed and all construction costs have been paid in full, as certified by the Engineers for the District and/or by the RD, any balance then remaining in the Construction Account may, with the consent of the RD, be applied to the cost of constructing additional extensions, additions and improvements to the System (the "Additional Construction"). If such Additional Construction is to be undertaken by the Contractors previously engaged in the Project, such Additional Construction may be authorized by a change order.

If there is a balance remaining in the Construction Account after such Additional Construction, such balance (subject to legal requirements as to possible refund of any allocated portion of the balance derived from Grant Proceeds) shall be transferred to the Sinking Fund, whereupon said Construction Account shall be closed. Such remaining balance in the Construction Account so transferred to the Sinking Fund shall be used by the District immediately to prepay principal installments due on the Current Bonds in the inverse order of maturities without prepayment penalty, provided further that any balance insufficient to prepay at least \$100 of the principal payment falling due in any year on the Bonds will be transferred to the Debt Reserve Fund.

Section 302. Interim Financing Authorization.

A. Interim Financing. The District shall use interim financing for the Project during construction of that portion of the cost of the Project financed by the Current Bonds, if available at reasonable rates and terms.

The borrowing of up to the aggregate sum of \$1,858,000 from the Interim Lender is hereby authorized; and the Chairman is hereby authorized to execute the Note in the name and on behalf of the District. Each advance under the Note shall evidence a loan by the Interim Lender to the District for services rendered and/or materials supplied in connection with the Project, as evidenced by a Requisition Certificate.

Interim financing shall be disbursed as follows:

- (1) At the direction of the District, the Interim Lender shall disburse the proceeds of the Note by cashier's checks directly to the parties entitled thereto as set forth in the Requisition Certificate; or
- (2) At the direction of the District, the Interim Lender shall deposit the proceeds of the Note in the Construction Account, in which event amounts of the District on deposit therein shall, until expended to the extent that same shall exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, be fully secured by a pledge of U.S. Obligations.

The aggregate of the principal amount of all Notes shall not exceed \$1,858,000. Each Note which is renewed or superseded shall be simultaneously cancelled by the Interim Lender and transmitted to the Treasurer. The rate of interest applicable to each Note shall not exceed a reasonable rate, which rate is subject to the approval of the RD.

The total authorized interim financing of \$1,858,000 shall be the maximum indebtedness which the District may owe at any one time to the Interim Lender for the purpose of providing temporary construction financing for the Project; provided, however, that the District may reduce the amount owed by the District to the Interim Lender from time to time as and when funds are available to the District, whether derived from the proceeds of the Grant Proceeds, the proceeds of the sale of the Current Bonds or otherwise, and may reborrow from the Interim Lender additional amounts in anticipation of the further receipt by the District of additional proceeds from the Current Bonds and/or Grant Proceeds.

The District hereby covenants and agrees with the Interim Lender that upon the issuance and delivery of the Current Bonds and/or the receipt of said Grant Proceeds, the District will apply the proceeds thereof, to whatever extent may be necessary, in payment of the principal amount of the Note, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of such payment; and the proceeds of the Current Bonds and Grant Proceeds are hereby pledged therefor, and such pledge shall constitute a first and prior charge against said proceeds.

Although the proceeds of the Current Bonds and Grant Proceeds are pledged to the repayment of said interim financing, it is recognized that the Grant Proceeds may be applied to the extent required at the time of receipt of the Grant Proceeds, to the payment of costs of the Project due and owing by the District at the time of receipt of such Grant Proceeds, rather than to the repayment of portions of the interim financing at that time. If and to the extent that the Grant Proceeds are in excess of any costs of the Project due and owing at the time of receipt thereof, such Grant Proceeds may be applied, in the same manner as set out hereinabove, to the reduction of the amount of the interim financing, after which, such interim financing may again be increased as theretofore. The District further pledges the revenues of the System to the repayment of said interim financing, subject to the vested rights and priorities of the pledges securing the Outstanding Bonds.

It is understood that the foregoing constitutes an alternative method of obtaining interim financing, and does not preclude the authorization and sale, by public advertisement or

otherwise, of bond anticipation notes and/or grant anticipation notes to the most favorable bidder on the open market, by concurrent or subsequent proceedings of the District.

B. Multiple Advances by RD. In the event the Current Bonds are purchased by the RD, and in the event the District is unable to obtain a commitment for interim financing for the Project from any Interim Lender at reasonable rates and terms, the Chairman is authorized to request Multiple Advances of loan funds from the RD.

If the RD agrees to make Multiple Advances to the District pending the delivery of the Current Bonds, the Chairman is hereby authorized to execute in the name and on behalf of the District any number of Notes. Each such Note, evidencing an advance of funds by the RD to the District, shall be in the form prescribed by the RD.

Each request for an advance from the RD shall be accompanied by a Requisition Certificate. The District will also furnish to the RD, prior to the receipt of each Multiple Advance, whatever additional documentation shall be requested by the RD, including an updated supplemental title opinion of Local Counsel and an updated supplemental preliminary legal opinion of Bond Counsel.

The proceeds of any Multiple Advances shall be either (i) disbursed directly to the parties entitled thereto for services and/or materials supplied in connection with the Project; or (ii) deposited into the Construction Account and disbursed in accordance with the provisions of Section 301 hereof, in which event amounts on deposit in such Construction Account shall, until expended, to the extent that same shall exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, be fully secured by a pledge of U.S. Obligations.

The proceeds of the Current Bonds are hereby pledged to the repayment of such Multiple Advances, and such pledge shall constitute a first and prior pledge against such proceeds. The District further pledges the revenues of the System to the repayment of said Multiple Advances, subject to the vested rights and priorities of the pledges securing the Outstanding Bonds.

Section 303. Arbitrage Limitations on Investment of Proceeds. The District covenants and certifies, in compliance with the Code, on the basis of known facts and reasonable expectations on the date of adoption of this Resolution, that it is not expected that the proceeds of the Current Bonds will be used in a manner which would cause the Current Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The District covenants to the Owners of the Current Bonds that (1) the District will make no use of the proceeds of said Current Bonds which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date of issue of such Current Bonds, would have caused such Current Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds"; and (2) the District will comply with all of the requirements of the Code to whatever extent is necessary to assure that the Current Bonds shall not be treated as or constitute "arbitrage bonds" and that the interest on the Bonds shall be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Prior to or at the time of delivery of the Current Bonds, the Chairman and/or the Treasurer (who are jointly and severally charged with the responsibility for the issuance of the Current Bonds)

are authorized to execute such certifications as shall be required by Bond Counsel, setting out all known and contemplated facts concerning the anticipated construction, expenditures and investments, including the execution of necessary and/or desirable certifications of the type contemplated by Section 148 of the Code in order to assure that interest on the Current Bonds shall be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and that the Current Bonds will not be treated as "arbitrage bonds".

ARTICLE 4. FLOW OF FUNDS.

<u>Section 401. Funds.</u> There is hereby created and established in this Resolution the following funds and accounts:

- (a) Farmdale Water District Revenue Fund
- (b) Farmdale Water District Sinking Fund
- (c) Farmdale Water District Debt Reserve Fund
- (d) Farmdale Water District Operation and Maintenance Fund

All of the Funds shall be maintained with the Depository Bank so long as any Current Bonds remain outstanding, subject to the right of the District to designate a different depository bank.

<u>Section 402. Flow of Funds.</u> After the issuance of the Current Bonds, the income and revenues of the System shall be collected, segregated, accounted for and distributed as follows:

A. Revenue Fund. The District covenants and agrees that it will deposit in the Revenue Fund, promptly as received from time to time, all revenues of the System, as same may be extended and improved from time to time. The moneys in the Revenue Fund shall be used, disbursed and applied by the District only for the purpose and in the manner and order of priorities specified in this Resolution, all as permitted by the Act, and in accordance with previous contractual commitments.

B. Sinking Fund. At or after the delivery of the Current Bonds, there shall be transferred from the Construction Account to the Sinking Fund an amount sufficient to provide for capitalized interest (initially estimated at \$23,000) on the Current Bonds during the construction of the Project, if and to the extent not theretofore expended in paying interest on interim financing and if and to the extent then needed to pay interest during the remaining period of construction of the Project.

There shall be transferred from the Revenue Fund and deposited into the Sinking Fund on or before the 20th day of each month, for payment of interest on and principal of the Current Bonds, a sum equal to the total of the following:

- An amount equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next succeeding six-month interest payment to become due on the Current Bonds, plus
- (2) A sum equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal of any Current Bonds maturing on the next succeeding January 1.

If the District for any reason shall fail to make any monthly deposit as required, then an amount equal to the deficiency shall be set apart and deposited into the Sinking Fund out of the first available revenues in the ensuing months, which amount shall be in addition to the monthly deposit otherwise required during such succeeding months. Whenever there shall accumulate in the Sinking Fund amounts in excess of the requirements during the next twelve months for paying the principal

of and interest due on the Current Bonds, as same fall due, such excess may be used for redemption or prepayment of any Current Bonds, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, prior to maturity.

C. Debt Reserve Fund. It is hereby determined that upon the issuance of the Current Bonds, and upon completion of the Project, as certified by the Engineers and by the RD, there shall next be transferred from the Revenue Fund the sum of at least \$825 each month which shall be deposited into the Debt Reserve Fund until there is accumulated in such Debt Reserve Fund the sum of at least \$98,500, which amount shall be maintained, and when necessary, restored to said sum of \$98,500 so long as any of the Current Bonds are outstanding and unpaid.

As further security for the Bondowners and for the benefit of the District, it has been and is hereby provided that in addition to the monthly transfers required to be made from the Revenue Fund into the Debt Reserve Fund, there shall be deposited into said Debt Reserve Fund all proceeds of connection fees collected from potential customers (except the amounts necessary to pay the actual costs and service connections applicable to said potential customers) to aid in the financing of the cost of future extensions, additions and improvements to the System, plus the proceeds of any property damage insurance (not otherwise used to replace damaged or destroyed property); and any such amounts or proceeds so deposited shall be used solely and only for the purposes intended.

Moneys in the Debt Reserve Fund may be withdrawn and used by the District, upon appropriate certification of the Commission, for the purpose of paying the cost of unusual or extraordinary maintenance, repairs, renewals and replacements not included in the annual budget of current expenses and/or of paying the costs of constructing future extensions, additions and improvements to the System which will either enhance its revenue-producing capacity or will provide a higher degree of service, and when necessary, for the purpose of making payments of principal and interest on the Bonds if the amount on deposit in the Sinking Fund is not sufficient to make such payments.

- D. Operation and Maintenance Fund. There shall next be transferred monthly from the Revenue Fund and deposited into said Operation and Maintenance Fund, sums sufficient to meet the current expenses of operating and maintaining the System. The balance maintained in said Operation and Maintenance Fund shall not be in excess of the amount required to cover anticipated System expenditures for a two-month period pursuant to the District's annual budget.
- E. Monthly Principal and Interest Payments if Requested by RD. So long as any of the Bonds are held or insured by the RD, the District shall, if requested by the RD, make the payments required by this Section 402, in monthly installments to the RD or to the insured Owners of the Bonds.
- F. Surplus Funds. Subject to the provisions for the disposition of the income and revenues of the System as set forth hereinabove, which provisions are cumulative, and after paying or providing for the payment of debt service on any subordinate obligations, there shall be transferred, within sixty days after the end of each fiscal year, the balance of excess funds in the Revenue Fund on such date, to the Debt Reserve Fund for application in accordance with the terms

of this Resolution or to the Sinking Fund to be applied to the maximum extent feasible, to the prompt purchase or redemption of Outstanding Bonds.

G. Investment and Miscellaneous Provisions. All monies in the Sinking Fund and the Debt Reserve Fund shall be deposited in the Depository Bank, or such portion thereof as is designated by the Commission. All monies in the Sinking Fund and the Debt Reserve Fund shall be invested for the benefit of such respective Funds in Certificates of Time Deposit or savings accounts of the Depository Bank or in U.S. Obligations which may be converted readily into cash, having a maturity date prior to the date when the sums invested will be needed for the purposes for which such funds may be expended, provided that to the extent that any amount of the District on deposit in the Depository Bank shall cause the total deposits of the District in said Depository Bank to exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, such excess amount shall be continuously secured by a valid pledge of U.S. Obligations, having an equivalent market value, in conformity with Section 66.480 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.

All investments of funds derived from proceeds of the Outstanding Bonds shall be subject to the applicable limitations set out in Section 303 hereof.

All payments into the Funds shall be made on or before the twentieth (20th) day of each month, except that when the twentieth (20th) day of any month shall be a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday, then such payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day.

All monies held in any of the Funds shall be kept apart from all other District funds and shall be deposited in the Depository Bank, and all such deposits which cause the aggregate of all deposits of the District therein to be in excess of the amount secured by FDIC, shall (unless invested as herein authorized) be secured by a surety bond or bonds or by a pledge of U.S. Obligations, having a market value equivalent to such deposit.

The Treasurer shall keep appropriate records as to payment of principal and interest installments and as to payment of principal of and interest on any Bonds.

ARTICLE 5. COVENANTS OF DISTRICT

Section 501. Rates and Charges. The District shall charge such rates and charges for all services and facilities rendered by the System, which rates and charges shall be reasonable, taking into account and consideration the cost and value of the System, the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating same and the amounts necessary for the payment of principal of and interest on Outstanding Bonds against the System. The District shall charge such rates and charges as shall be adequate to meet the requirements of Articles 4 and 5 hereof.

The District covenants that it will not reduce the rates and charges for the services rendered by the System without first filing with the Secretary a certification of an Independent Consulting Engineer that the annual net revenues (defined as gross revenues less operating expenses) of the then existing System for the fiscal year preceding the year in which such reduction is proposed, as such annual net revenues are adjusted, after taking into account the projected reduction in annual net revenues anticipated to result from any such proposed rate decrease, are equal to not less than 120% of the average annual debt service requirements for principal and interest on all of the then Outstanding Bonds payable from the revenues of the System, calculated in the manner specified in Section 603 hereof.

Section 502. Books and Accounts; Audit. The District shall maintain proper records and accounts relating to the operation of the System and the District's financial affairs; and the Bondowners, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the facilities of the System and all records, accounts and data relating thereto. An annual audit shall be made of the books and accounts pertinent to the System by a Certified Public Accountant licensed in Kentucky. No later than ninety (90) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, copies of such audit reports certified by such Certified Public Accountant shall be promptly mailed to the RD without request, so long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Bonds, and to any Bondowner that may have made a written request for same.

Monthly operating reports shall be furnished to the RD and to any Bondowner requesting same, during the first two (2) years of operation after completion of the Project, and whenever and so long as the District is delinquent in any of the covenants set out in this Current Bond Resolution. Thereafter, quarterly operating reports shall be furnished at all other times to the RD and to any Bondowner requesting the same.

Section 503. System to Continue to be Operated on Fiscal Year Basis; Annual Budget. While any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, and to the extent permitted by law, the System shall continue to be operated and maintained on a Fiscal Year basis.

Not later than sixty (60) days before the end of each Fiscal Year, the District agrees to cause to be prepared a proposed annual budget of operating expenses (the "Proposed Budget") of the System for the then ensuing Fiscal Year, itemized on the basis of monthly requirements. A copy of said Proposed Budget shall be mailed to any Bondowner who may request in writing a copy of such Proposed Budget and to the RD without request, if the Government is the Owner of any of the Bonds.

For the purpose of the Proposed Budget, operating expenses shall include all reasonable and necessary expenses of operating, repairing, maintaining and insuring the System, but shall exclude depreciation and debt service payments. The District covenants that the operating expenses incurred in any year will not exceed the reasonable and necessary amounts therefor, and that the District will not expend any amount or incur any obligation for operation or maintenance and repair in excess of the amounts provided for operating expenses in the annual budget, except upon resolution by the District that such expenses are necessary to operate and maintain the System.

Not later than sixty (60) days before the end of each Fiscal Year, the District shall prepare an estimate of gross revenues to be derived from the operation of the System for said Fiscal Year, and, to the extent that said gross revenues are insufficient (a) to pay debt service requirements on all Outstanding Bonds during the ensuing Fiscal Year, (b) to accumulate and maintain all required reserves enumerated herein and (c) to pay operating expenses, the District shall revise the rates and charges sufficiently to provide the funds so required.

If the Owners of at least 50% of the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, or the Government so long as it is the Owner of any of said Outstanding Bonds, so request, the Commission shall hold an open hearing not later than thirty (30) days before the beginning of the ensuing Fiscal Year, at which time any Bondowner may appear by agent or attorney and may file written objections to such proposed budget. Notice of the time and place of such hearing shall be mailed at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing to each registered Bondowner and to the Government.

The District covenants that annually before the first day of the Fiscal Year, the annual budget for the upcoming Fiscal Year will be adopted substantially in accordance with the Proposed Budget, and that no expenditures for operation and maintenance expenses of the System in excess of the budgeted amount shall be made during such Fiscal Year unless directed by said District by a specific resolution duly adopted.

Section 504. General Covenants. The District, through its Commission, hereby covenants and agrees with the Owners of the Bonds that:

- It will faithfully and punctually perform all duties with reference to the System required by the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky;
- (2) It will make and collect reasonable and sufficient rates and charges for services and facilities rendered by the System;
- (3) It will segregate the revenues and income from the System and make application thereof consistent with and as provided by this Resolution;
- (4) Unless the written consent of the Owners of a majority of the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds has been obtained, the District agrees not to sell, lease, mortgage or in any manner dispose of any integral part of the System, including any and all appurtenances thereto and extensions, additions

and improvements that may be made thereto, until all of the Outstanding Bonds shall have been paid or provided for in full, as provided herein; subject to the provisions of Section 607 hereof;

- (5) It will maintain in good condition and continuously operate the System and appurtenances thereto and will charge such rates and charges for the services rendered thereby so that the gross income and revenues will be sufficient at all times (i) to pay the interest on and principal of the Outstanding Bonds as same become due; (ii) to pay the cost of operating and maintaining the System; and (iii) to provide for an adequate depreciation account; and
- (6) It will carry and maintain insurance on properties of the System subject to loss or damage in amounts and against hazards substantially in accordance with the practices of other districts, cities or corporations which own and maintain waterworks systems under similar conditions; and so long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Outstanding Bonds, the Government will be listed as co-beneficiary on any such policy; and the District shall further comply with the insurance requirements of Section 506 hereof (involving insurance on motors, tanks and structures).

Section 505. Other Covenants Applicable So Long as RD Owns Any Bonds. So long as the RD shall own any of the Bonds, the District shall comply with such RD regulations, requirements and requests as shall be made by the RD, including the furnishing of operating and other financial statements, in such form and substance and for such periods as may be requested by the RD, the carrying of insurance of such types and in such amounts as the RD may specify, with insurance carriers acceptable to the RD and compliance with all of the terms and conditions of the Loan Resolution (RD Form 1780-27) adopted and executed by the District, which is hereby authorized, approved, ratified and confirmed.

Section 506. Insurance on Motors, Tanks and Structures. The District shall (a) immediately after the adoption of this Resolution and (b) at the time of final acceptance of the Project, insure all electric motors, elevated water storage tanks, pumping stations and major structures of the System in an amount recommended by the Engineers and approved by the RD, so long as the RD is the Owner of any of the Bonds, for the hazards usually covered in such area, and shall similarly insure same in an amount recommended by the Engineers, without the necessity of approval by the RD if and whenever the District has Outstanding Bonds against the System and none of such Outstanding Bonds are owned by the RD.

ARTICLE 6. INFERIOR BONDS AND PARITY BONDS

Section 601. Inferior Bonds. Except as hereinafter provided below in this Article, the District shall not, so long as any Bonds are outstanding, issue any additional bonds payable from the revenues of the System unless the security and/or pledge of the revenues to secure such additional bonds are made inferior and subordinate in all respects to the security of the Bonds.

The District expressly reserves the right at any time to issue its bonds or other obligations payable from the revenues of the System and not ranking on a parity basis with the Current Bonds, without any proof of previous earnings or net revenues, provided that the consent of the RD must be obtained prior to the issuance of any inferior bonds so long as the RD owns any of the Bonds, and provided further that, after the initial completion of the Project, such inferior bonds may be issued only for the purpose of providing for future extensions, additions and improvements to the System, and only inexpress recognition of the priorities, liens and rights created and existing for the security, source of payment and protection of the Outstanding Bonds; provided further, that nothing in this Section is intended to restrict or shall be construed as a restriction upon, the ordinary refunding all or a portion of the Outstanding Bonds.

Section 602. Parity Bonds to Complete the Project. The District hereby certifies, covenants and agrees that in the event that the cost of completion of the construction of the Project shall exceed the moneys available to the District from any and all sources, the District shall have the right, if necessary, to provide for such excess, and only such excess, through the issuance of Parity Bonds, provided the District has obtained a certification from the Engineers to the effect that it is necessary to issue the desired amount of Parity Bonds in order to enable the District to pay the cost (not otherwise provided) of the completion of the Project, and provided the District has complied with the provisions of Section 603 below or has obtained the consent of (1) the RD if the Government is the purchaser of the Current Bonds; or (2) the Owners of at least 75% of the principal amount of the Current Bonds outstanding, if the Current Bonds have been issued, sold and delivered and are held by Owners other than the Government.

Section 603. Parity Bonds to Finance Future Improvements. The District reserved the right and privilege, and does hereby reserve the right and privilege, of issuing additional Parity Bonds, but only under the conditions specified in the Current Bond Resolution, which conditions are as follows:

The District further reserves the right to add new waterworks facilities and/or to finance future extensions, additions and improvements to the System by the issuance of one or more additional series of Parity Bonds to be secured by a parity lien on and ratably payable on a parity with the Current Bonds, from the revenues of the System, provided:

(a) The facilities to be constructed from the proceeds of the additional Parity Bonds are made a part of the System and their revenues are pledged as additional security for the additional Parity Bonds and for the Outstanding Bonds.

- (b) The District is in compliance with all covenants and undertakings in connection with all of the Outstanding Bonds.
- (c) The annual net revenues (defined as gross revenues less operating expenses), of the then existing System for the Fiscal Year preceding the year in which such Parity Bonds are to be issued, adjusted as hereinafter provided, shall be certified by an independent Certified Public Accountant to be equal at least one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the average annual debt service requirements for principal and interest on all Outstanding Bonds payable from the revenues of the System, plus the anticipated debt service requirements of any Parity Bonds then proposed to be issued. The calculation of average annual debt service requirements of principal and interest on the additional Parity Bonds to be issued shall, regardless of whether such additional Parity Bonds are to be serial or term bonds, be determined on the basis of the principal of and interest on such Parity Bonds being payable in approximately equal annual installments.
- (d) The annual net revenues referred to above may be adjusted for the purpose of the foregoing computations to reflect:
 - any revisions in the System's schedule of rates or charges being imposed on or before the time of the issuance of any such additional Parity Bonds, and
 - (2) any increase in the annual net revenues to be realized from the proposed extensions, additions and improvements being financed (in whole or in part) by such additional Parity Bonds;

provided all such adjustments shall be based upon and included in a certification of an Independent Consulting Engineer.

(e) Compliance with Section 603(a) through (d) shall not be necessary for the issuance of Parity Bonds if the District has obtained (1) the written consent of the RD for the issuance of such Parity Bonds, if the Government is the Owner of any Bonds at the time of issuance of such Parity Bonds; and (2) the written consent of the Owners of all of the then outstanding Prior Bonds, and no other prerequisite need be complied with by the District in order to issue Parity Bonds.

Section 604. Covenants to be Complied with at Time of Issuance of Parity Bonds. The District hereby covenants and agrees that in the event any Parity Bonds are issued, the District shall:

- (a) Adjust the monthly amount to be deposited into the Sinking Fund on the same basis as that prescribed in the provisions establishing such Sinking Fund, to reflect the average annual debt service requirements of the Parity Bonds;
- (b) Adjust the minimum annual amount to be deposited monthly into the Debt Reserve Fund on the same basis as that prescribed in the provisions establishing such Debt

Reserve Fund, taking into account the future debt service requirements of all Bonds which will then be outstanding against the System; and

(c) Make such Parity Bonds payable as to principal on January 1 of each year in which principal falls due and payable as to interest on January 1 and July 1 of each year until the final maturity of such Parity Bonds.

Section 605. Prepayment Provisions Applicable to Parity Bonds. If, in connection with any subsequently issued series of Parity Bonds, it is provided that excess revenues in the Revenue Fund shall be used to prepay Outstanding Bonds in advance of scheduled maturity, or if the District at its option undertakes to prepay Outstanding Bonds in advance of scheduled maturity, it is agreed and understood, for so long as the Government owns any of the Outstanding Bonds, that no such prepayment will be effected without the approval of the RD.

Section 606. Consent of the RD Regarding Future Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, the District agrees that so long as the Government owns any Outstanding Bonds against and/or payable from the revenues of the System, the District will not issue any future bonds, notes or other obligations against, secured by or payable from the revenues of the System without the written consent of the RD.

Section 607. Priority of Lien; Permissible Disposition of Surplus or Obsolete Facilities. The District covenants and agrees that so long as any of the Current Bonds are outstanding, the District will not sell or otherwise dispose of any of the facilities of the System, or any part thereof, and, except as provided above, the District will not create or permit to be created any charge or lien on the revenues thereof ranking equal or prior to the charge or lien of the Outstanding Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District may at any time permanently abandon the use of, or sell at fair market value, any part of the facilities of the System, provided that:

- (a) The District is in compliance with all covenants and undertakings in connection with all of the Outstanding Bonds, and the required reserves for such Outstanding Bonds will have been accumulated;
- (b) The District will, in the event of any such sale, apply the proceeds to either (1) redemption of Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the provisions governing prepayment of bonds in advance of maturity; or (2) replacement of the facility so disposed of by another facility, the revenues of which shall be incorporated into the System, as hereinbefore provided;
- (c) The District certifies, in good faith, prior to any abandonment of use, that the facilities to be abandoned are no longer economically feasible of producing net revenues; and
- (d) The District certifies, in good faith, that the estimated net revenues of the remaining facilities of the System for the then next succeeding Fiscal Year, plus the estimated net revenues of the facilities, if any, to be added to the

System, comply with the earnings requirements hereinbefore provided in the provisions and conditions governing the issuance of Parity Bonds.

Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, so long as any Bonds are held by the Government, the District shall not dispose of its title to the System or to any part thereof, without first obtaining the written consent of the RD.

ARTICLE 7. DEFAULT AND CONSEQUENCES

Section 701. Events of Default. The following items shall constitute an Event of Default on the part of the District:

- (a) The failure to pay principal of the Bonds as and when same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption.
- (b) The failure to pay any installment of interest on the Bonds when the same shall become due and payable or, if any or all of the Outstanding Bonds are owned by the RD, within thirty (30) days thereafter.
- (c) The default by the District in the due or punctual performance of any of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or in this Resolution.
- (d) The failure to promptly repair, replace or reconstruct facilities of the System that have been damaged and/or destroyed.
- (e) The entering of any order or decree with the consent or the acquiescence of the District, appointing a receiver of all or any part of the System or any revenues thereof; or if such order or decree shall be entered without the acquiescence or consent of the District, its failure to have the order vacated, discharged or stayed on appeal within sixth (60) days after entry.

Section 702. Consequences of Event of Default. Any Owner of the Current Bonds may enforce and compel the performance of all duties and obligations of the District set forth herein. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, then upon the filing of a suit by any Owner of said the Current Bonds, any court having jurisdiction of the action may appoint a receiver to administer said System on behalf of the District with power to charge and collect rates sufficient to provide for the payment of operating and maintenance expenses and for the payment of principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds and to provide and apply the income and revenues in conformity with this Resolution and with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

The District hereby agrees to transfer to any bona fide receiver or other subsequent operator of the System, pursuant to any valid court order in a proceeding brought to enforce collection or payment of the District's obligations, all contracts and other rights of the District pertaining to the System, conditionally, for such time only as such receiver or operator shall operate by authority of the court. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Owner of any of the Outstanding Bonds may require the governing body of the District by appropriate order to raise the rates a reasonable amount consistent with the requirements of this Resolution.

ARTICLE 8. CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS; MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Section 801. Resolution Contractual with Bondowners. The provisions of this Resolution constitute a contract between the District and its Commission and the Owners of the Current Bonds as may be outstanding from time to time; and after the issuance of any of said Current Bonds, no change, alteration or variation of any kind of the provisions of this Resolution shall be made in any manner which will affect an Owner's rights except as herein provided or except with the written consent of all Bondowners until such time as all of the Current Bonds and the interest thereon have been paid in full or fully provided for; provided that the Commission may adopt any resolution for any purpose not inconsistent with the terms of this Resolution and which shall not impair the security of the Owners of the Current Bonds and/or for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective or inconsistent provisions contained herein or in any resolution or other proceedings pertaining hereto.

It is further agreed that the Owners of 75% in principal amount of the Current Bonds at any time outstanding shall have the right to consent to and approve the adoption of resolutions or other proceedings, modifying or amending any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution, subject to the conditions that no such change may be effected without the consent of the RD so long as the RD owns any of the Outstanding Bonds.

Section 802. All Current Bonds are Equal. The Current Bonds authorized herein shall not be entitled to priority one over the other in the application of the income and revenues of the System, or with respect to the security for their payment, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, it being the intention that there shall be no priority among any of the Current Bonds regardless of the fact that they may be actually issued and delivered at different times.

Section 803. District Obligated to Refund Current Bonds Owned by Government Whenever Feasible; Defeasement Prohibited. So long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Current Bonds, if it appears to the Government that the District is able to refund such Current Bonds in whole or in part, by obtaining a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private credit sources, or to sell bonds of the District in the open market, at reasonable rates and terms, for loans or bond issues for similar purposes and periods of time, the District will, upon request of the Government, obtain such loan and/or issue such bonds in sufficient amount to repay the Government and will take all such action as may be required in connection therewith.

In addition, so long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Current Bonds, the District shall not issue any bonds or other obligations for the purpose of defeasing or otherwise terminating the lien of the Current Bonds without immediately prepaying all of the then outstanding Current Bonds.

Section 804. Authorization, Ratification and Confirmation of Approval and Execution of Various Documents. The Commission hereby authorizes, approves, ratifies and confirms the previous action of the officers of the District in approving and executing various documents related to the financing of the Project, including the following:

- (a) Legal Services Agreement with Bond Counsel.
- (b) Legal Services Agreement with Local Counsel.
- (c) Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions of RD Letter of Conditions (RD Form 1942-46).
- (d) Loan Resolution (RD Form 1780-27).
- (e) Agreement for Engineering Services with the Engineers.

Section 805. Authorization of Condemnation to Acquire Easements and/or Sites. In the event that (a) any necessary deeds of easement to allow construction of the Project over the property of any property owner or (b) any necessary deed to the necessary site of any waterworks facility of the Project shall not be obtained through negotiation within ten (10) days after the date of adoption of this Resolution and in the event that (1) such waterworks lines cannot be located within the right-of-way of the State and/or County road involved; and/or (2) such waterworks facilities cannot be located on a site already owned by the District, Local Counsel is hereby authorized and directed to file condemnation actions to obtain such necessary rights-of-way and/or sites forthwith, without further authorization or direction from the District or the Commission. Local Counsel is further directed to follow the same condemnation procedure in the event that it becomes necessary, through change orders, line extensions and/or errors in the location of property lines and/or property owners, to obtain additional easements, rights-of-way and/or sites for completion of the Project and whenever the necessary deed is not obtained by negotiation at least ten (10) days prior to the date on which construction is contemplated in the respective easement, right-of-way and/or site.

The District further approves the payment from the funds available therefor allocated to the costs of the Project to pay any judgment award, or compromise, determined by Local Counsel with the acquiescence of the Commission, toward the costs of such easements, rights-of-way and/or sites; provided, in each instance, that the payment of such funds to satisfy any judgment, award or compromise must first be approved by the RD; and the Commission further determines that if and to whatever extent the funds available from the proceeds of the financing contemplated by this Resolution shall be inadequate to pay any judgment, award or compromise amount for such easements, rights-of-way and/or sites, or if the District is unable to obtain the approval of the RD for any such payment, the Commission shall take all reasonably necessary actions, within the powers and authority of the Commission, to make such additional amount available from all other available District resources.

Section 806. Authorization to File Required Financing Statements. In the event that it is determined by Bond Counsel or Local Counsel that the District is required to file any financing statements under the Kentucky Uniform Commercial Code in order to perfect the pledge of the gross revenues of the District's System as security for the Current Bonds, Bond Counsel and/or Local Counsel are hereby authorized to prepare and file with the appropriate officials such financing statements as they deem necessary.

ARTICLE 9. SALE OF CURRENT BONDS

<u>Section 901. Sale of Current Bonds.</u> The Current Bonds shall be offered publicly for sale upon the basis of sealed, competitive bids at such time as the Commission shall designate.

A suggested form of "Notice of Bond Sale", a suggested form of "Official Notice of Sale of Bonds" and a suggested form of "Bid Form", having been prepared in advance by Bond Counsel, and all of such documents having been found to be in satisfactory form, a copy of each is hereby ordered to be filed in the records of the Secretary with the Minutes of the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted. The Notice of Bond Sale shall be signed by the Secretary and may be used for the purpose of publishing notice of the sale of the Current Bonds. Copies of such documents shall be furnished to any interested parties who may request same.

In the event that there is no bid or that all bids are rejected, the District may readvertise the sale pursuant to this Resolution.

Section 902. Adjustment in Maturities, Prepayment Provisions and Other Dates, with Consent of Purchaser if Delivery is Delayed. In the event that delivery of the Current Bonds authorized herein is delayed for any reason and the District, with the consent of the Purchaser of the Current Bonds, determines it is in the District's best interest to change the maturities, the applicable prepayment date or any other dates, the District may adjust the same by a Resolution of the Commission approving the adjustments.

ARTICLE 10. CONCLUDING PROVISIONS

<u>with the Code.</u> In order to assure the Owners of the Current Bonds that such Current Bonds shall continue to be legal and that interest thereon will continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and exempt from all Kentucky income taxation, the District covenants to and with the Owners of the Current Bonds to take the following action:

- (a) The District will (1) take all actions necessary to comply with the provisions of the Code necessary to assure that interest on the Current Bonds will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes; (2) will take no actions which will violate any of the provisions of the Code; and (3) not use the proceeds of the Current Bonds for any purpose which will cause interest on the Current Bonds or on interim financing obligations, including, but not limited to the Note, issued pursuant to Section 302 hereof to become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.
- (b) The District hereby certifies that it does not reasonably anticipate that the total principal amount of "qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code which the District, or any subordinate entity of the District, will issue during the calendar year during which the Current Bonds are issued, will exceed \$10,000,000; and therefore the District hereby designates the Current Bonds and all interim financing obligations, including, but not limited to the Note, issued pursuant to Section 302 hereof as "qualified tax-exempt obligations".
- (c) The District further certifies that the Current Bonds and any and all interim financing obligations of the District are not "private activity bonds" within the meaning of the Code.
- (d) The District covenants and agrees to comply with the rebate requirements on certain excess earnings imposed by Section 148 of the Code, and in the event it is determined by the District, upon the advice of Bond Counsel, that the Construction Account, or any other Fund established hereunder, is subject to said rebate requirements and does in fact generate earnings from "non-purpose investments" in excess of the amount which said investments would have earned at a rate equal to the "yield" on the Current Bonds, plus any income attributable to such excess, there shall be established a separate and special fund with the Depository Bank, which fund shall be designated the "Excess Earnings and Rebate Fund", which shall be utilized for the collection and payment of any excess generated from investments and the remittance thereof to the United States of America on or before the anniversary of the fifth (5th) year from the date of the Current Bonds, and once every five (5) years thereafter until the final retirement of the Current Bonds; the last installment, to the extent required, to be made no later than sixty (60) days following the date on which funds sufficient for the complete retirement of the Current Bonds are deposited with any escrow agent. The District further covenants to file any and all reports, if any, as may be required to be filed with the Government with regard to the liability or non-liability of the District as

to any such rebate requirements and to maintain records in regard thereto for the period of time required by applicable Treasury regulations.

<u>Section 1002. Severability Clause.</u> If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be held invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution, which shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 1003. All Provisions in Conflict Repealed. All motions, resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. It is hereby specifically ordered and provided that any proceedings heretofore taken for the issuance of other bonds of the District payable or secured in any manner by all or any part of the income and revenues of said System or any part thereof, and which have not been heretofore issued and delivered, are hereby revoked and rescinded, and none of such other bonds shall be issued and delivered. The District covenants to correct by appropriate proceedings any required procedure previously taken invalidly.

<u>Section 1004. Effective Immediately Upon Adoption.</u> This Resolution shall take effect and be effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted this June 27, 2012.

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

(Seal of District)

Attest:

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Farmdale Water District and that the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of said District, signed by the Chairman of said District and attested under Seal by me as Secretary, at a properly convened meeting of said Board of Commissioners held on June 27, 2012, as shown by the official records of said District in my custody and under my control.

I further certify that said meeting was duly held in accordance with all applicable requirements of Kentucky law, including KRS 61.810, 61.815, 61.820 and 61.825, that a quorum was present at said meeting, that said Resolution has not been modified, amended, revoked or repealed, and that same is now in full force and effect.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my signature as Secretary and the official Seal of the District this June 27, 2012.

Secretary

(Seal of District)

EXHIBIT A-1
Schedule of Principal Payments on Series A Bonds

| Payment Due | Principal | Payment Due | Principal |
|-------------|-----------|-------------|-----------|
| January 1 | Payment | January 1 | Payment |
| 2015 | \$18,500 | 2034 | \$40,500 |
| 2016 | 19,000 | 2035 | 42,000 |
| 2017 | 20,000 | 2036 | 44,000 |
| 2018 | 21,000 | 2037 | 46,000 |
| 2019 | 21,500 | 2038 | 48,000 |
| 2020 | 22,500 | 2039 | 50,000 |
| 2021 | 23,500 | 2040 | 52,000 |
| 2022 | 24,500 | 2041 | 54,000 |
| 2023 | 25,500 | 2042 | 56,500 |
| 2024 | 26,500 | 2043 | 59,000 |
| 2025 | 28,000 | 2044 | 61,500 |
| 2026 | 29,000 | 2045 | 64,000 |
| 2027 | 30,000 | 2046 | 66,500 |
| 2028 | 31,500 | 2047 | 69,500 |
| 2029 | 33,000 | 2048 | 72,500 |
| 2030 | 34,500 | 2049 | 75,500 |
| 2031 | 35,500 | 2050 | 79,000 |
| 2032 | 37,000 | 2051 | 82,000 |
| 2033 | 39,000 | 2052 | 85,500 |
| | | | 13.00 |

EXHIBIT A-2
Schedule of Principal Payments on Series B Bonds

| Payment Due | Principal | Payment Due | Principal |
|-----------------|-------------|-------------|-----------|
| January I | Payment | January 1 | Payment |
| 2015 | \$2,500 | 2034 | \$5,000 |
| 2016 | 2,500 | 2035 | 5,000 |
| 2017 | 2,500 | 2036 | 5,000 |
| 2018 | 3,000 2037 | | 5,500 |
| 2019 | 3,000 2038 | | 5,500 |
| 2020 | 3,000 | 2039 | 5,500 |
| 2021 | 3,000 | 2040 | 6,000 |
| 2022 | 3,000 | 2041 | 6,000 |
| 2023 | 3,500 | 2042 | 6,000 |
| 2024 | 3,500 | 2043 | 6,500 |
| 2025 | 5 3,500 204 | | 6,500 |
| 2026 | 3,500 | 2045 | 7,000 |
| 2027 | 4,000 | 2046 | 7,000 |
| 2028 4,000 2047 | | 2047 | 7,500 |
| 2029 | 4,000 | 2048 | 7,500 |
| 2030 | 4,000 | 2049 | 8,000 |
| 2031 | 4,500 | 2050 | 8,000 |
| 2032 | 4,500 | 2051 | 8,500 |
| 2033 | 4,500 | 2052 | 8,000 |

EXHIBIT B

(FORM OF FULLY REGISTERED BOND)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2013 ___

| NoR | | Intere | st Rate: | 1/0 | | 2 |
|-----------------------------------|--|--|--|---|---|--|
| į | KNOW ALL PE | RSONS BY | THESE PRES | ENTS: | | |
| Commis | | ommission" |), a public body | | | ough its Board of nty, Kentucky, for |
| the regis | | eof, or to its | registered assig | | | einafter identified, |
| | - | | | DOLLARS | (\$ | _), |
| on the f | irst day of Janua | ry, in years | and installments | s as follows: | ė, | |
| Year | Principal | Year | Principal | Year | Principal | |
| | ne printer of the stered Owner] | Current Bor | nd will print the | maturities o | of the Current Bo | onds purchased by |
| of Janua until sai be and l | time remaining of ary and July in ea id sum is paid, ex become applicab | unpaid, at thach year, begoet as the pole hereto, be | ne Interest Rate s ginning with the provisions herein oth principal and | specified about first January nafter set for I interest be | ove, semiannual or July after the th with respect t ing payable, wit | orincipal sum from ly on the first days date of this Bond, o prepayment may hout deduction for a, at the address of |

amount of \$1,858,000, consisting of \$1,668,000 of Series A Bonds and \$190,000 of Series B Bonds,

This Series ___ Bond is issued by the District as part of an issue in the aggregate principal

the registered owner shown on the registration book of the District.

under and in full compliance with the Constitution and Statutes of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, including Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (collectively the "Act"), and pursuant to a duly adopted Bond Resolution of the District authorizing same (the "Current Bond Resolution"), to which Current Bond Resolution reference is hereby made for a description of the nature and extent of the security thereby created, the rights and limitations of rights of the registered owner of this Bond, and the rights, obligations and duties of the District, for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the construction of extensions, additions and improvements to the existing waterworks system of the District (said existing waterworks system, together with said extensions, additions and improvements, being hereinafter referred to as the "System").

This Bond is secured by a pledge of the gross revenues to be derived from the operation of the System as provided in the Current Bonds Resolution.

This Bond has been issued in full compliance with the Current Bond Resolution and this Bond, and any bonds ranking on a parity therewith that may be issued and outstanding under the conditions and restrictions of the Current Bond Resolution are and will continue to be payable from revenues which shall be set aside in a fund for that purpose and identified as the "Farmdale Water District Sinking Fund", created in the Current Bond Resolution.

This Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the District within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provisions or limitations and is payable solely out of the revenues of the System. As provided in the Current Bond Resolution, the District covenants that so long as any of the Current Bonds are outstanding, the System will be continuously owned and operated by the District as a revenue producing public undertaking within the meaning of the aforesaid Act for the security and source of payment of the Current Bonds and that the District will fix, and if necessary adjust, from time to time, such rates for the services and facilities of the System and will collect and account for the revenues therefrom sufficient to pay promptly the principal of and interest on the Current Bonds and all other bonds ranking on a parity therewith as may be outstanding from time to time, to pay the cost of operation and maintenance of the System and to provide for the depreciation thereof.

The District has reserved the right to issue additional bonds ranking on a parity as to security and source of payment with this Bond in order to complete the Project, and to finance future extensions, additions and improvements to the System, provided the necessary requirements of the Current Bond Resolution have been complied with by the District.

This Bond shall be registered as to principal and interest in the name of the owner hereof, after which it shall be transferable only upon presentation to the Secretary of the District as the Bond Registrar, with a written transfer duly acknowledged by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney, which transfer shall be noted upon this Bond and upon the registration book of the District kept for that purpose.

The District, at its option, shall have the right to prepay, on any interest payment date on and after January 1, 2022, in inverse chronological order of the installments due on this Bond, the entire principal amount of this Bond then remaining unpaid, or such lesser portion thereof, in a multiple

of One Hundred Dollars (\$100), as the District may determine, at a price in an amount equivalent to the principal amount to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment, without any prepayment premium. Notice of such prepayment shall be given by registered mail to the registered owner of this Bond or its assignee, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for prepayment. Notice of such prepayment may be waived with the written consent of the registered owner of this Bond.

So long as the registered owner of this Bond is the United States of America, or any agency thereof, the entire principal amount of this Bond, or installments in multiples of \$100, may be prepaid at any time in inverse chronological order of the installments due.

Upon default in the payment of any principal or interest payment on this Bond, or upon failure by the District to comply with any other provision of this Bond or with any provision of the Current Bond Resolution, the registered owner may, at its option, institute all rights and remedies provided by law or by said Current Bond Resolution.

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the face amount of this Bond, together with all other obligations of the District, does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution or Statutes of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said Farmdale Water District, by its Board of Commissioners, has caused this Bond to be executed by its Chairman, its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, and attested by its Secretary, on the date of this Bond, which is

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

| | Ву |
|--------------------|----------|
| Attest: | Chairman |
| Secretary | |
| (Seal of District) | |

PROVISION FOR REGISTRATION

This Bond shall be registered on the registration book of the District kept for that purpose by the Secretary, as Bond Registrar, upon presentation hereof to said Secretary, who shall make notation of such registration in the registration blank, and this Bond may thereafter be transferred

| only upon written transfer acknowledged by the registered owner or its attorney, | , such transfer to be |
|--|-----------------------|
| made on said book and endorsed hereon. | |

.

.

| Date of | Name of | 1 | Signature of Bond Registrar |
|--|--------------------------------|-------------|--------------------------------|
| Registration | Registered Owner | | n Bond Registrar |
| | | | |
| | 1 | I. | |
| | ASSIGNMENT | | |
| | | | |
| | thic Rand is haraby assigned w | ithout reco | ourse and subject to all of it |
| For value received terms and conditions, un | to | _, this _ | day of |
| For value received terms and conditions, und | to | , this | day of |
| For value received terms and conditions, und | to | , this | day of |

EXHIBIT C

REQUISITION CERTIFICATE

Re: Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, in the principal amount of \$1,858,000

The undersigned hereby certify as follows:

| The c | indensigned hereby certify t | as ronows. |
|-------------------------|-------------------------------|--|
| 1. | | ries required for construction and/or administrative draws |
| pursuant to t | he Bond Resolution adopte | d by the Farmdale Water District (the "District"). |
| 2. | | d/or persons set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto are now |
| | | , itemized as set forth in said Exhibit A and as per |
| approved inv | voices attached hereto: | |
| 3. | That upon said amount b | being lent to said District and/or obtained by said District |
| | | and/or other sources, the undersigned approve such expen- |
| | | o said firms and/or persons, either directly or from amounts |
| deposit in the | e "Farmdale Water District | Waterworks Construction Account". |
| 4. | That we hereby certify th | nat we have carefully inspected the work and, as a result of |
| | | owledge and belief, the amounts shown in this Requisition |
| | | been performed in accordance with the agreements between |
| | and the parties requesting pa | |
| | me me parmes requesting p | .,, |
| IN T | ESTIMONY WHEREOF, | witness the signature of the undersigned, this day of |
| | , 20 | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Farmdale Water District | | HMB Professional Engineers, Inc. |
| | | |
| Ву | | Ву |
| Cha | irman | Registered Professional Engineer |
| | | State of Kentucky No. |
| Approved or | 1 | Approved on |
| Approved of | | Approved on |
| USDA, Rural Development | | Amount expended heretofore \$ |
| | T. T. Y. | |
| Ву | RD Official | Amount approved herein |
| Authorized | RD Official | |
| | | Total |
| Approved or | 1 | |

EXHIBIT A TO REQUISITION CERTIFICATE

Name of Entity/Person

Amount

BOND RESOLUTION

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

AUTHORIZING

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024

IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF

\$2,458,000

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ARTICLE 1. | DEFINITIONS; PURPOSE; AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS; | | |
|--------------|---|----|--|
| | SECURITY | 2 | |
| Section 101. | Definitions | 2 | |
| Section 102. | Purpose | | |
| Section 103. | Construction Award Approved; Work Authorized | 5 | |
| Section 104. | Declaration of Period of Usefulness | | |
| Section 105. | Authorization of Bonds | | |
| Section 106. | Recognition of Prior Bonds | | |
| Section 107. | Current Bonds Shall be Payable on Out of Gross Revenues | | |
| Section 108. | Lien on Contracts | | |
| ARTICLE 2. | THE BONDS; BOND FORM; PREPAYMENT | 7 | |
| Section 201. | Principal Payments | 7 | |
| Section 202. | Issuance of Current Bonds; Bond Form | | |
| Section 203. | Place of Payment and Manner of Execution | | |
| Section 204. | Provisions as to Prepayment | | |
| ARTICLE 3. | CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT; INTERIM FINANCING; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS; ARBITRAGE LIMITATIONS | 8 | |
| Section 301. | Construction Account; Application of Proceeds of Bonds; Other | | |
| | Transfers and Deposits | 8 | |
| A. | Covenants Applicable if RD Purchases Current Bonds | 8 | |
| В. | Application of Proceeds of Current Bonds | | |
| Section 302. | Interim Financing Authorization | 10 | |
| A. | Interim Financing | 10 | |
| В. | | 11 | |
| Section 303. | Arbitrage Limitations on Investment of Proceeds | 12 | |
| ARTICLE 4. | FLOW OF FUNDS | 13 | |
| Section 401. | Funds | 13 | |
| Section 402. | Flow of Funds | 13 | |
| | | | |

| Α. | Revenue Fund | 14 |
|---|--|----|
| В. | Sinking Fund | 14 |
| C. | Debt Reserve Fund | 14 |
| D. | Operation and Maintenance Fund | 15 |
| E. | Monthly Principal and Interest Payments if Requested by RD | 15 |
| F. | Surplus Funds | 15 |
| G. | Investment and Miscellaneous Provisions | 15 |
| Section 403. | Current Bonds on a Parity with Prior Bonds | 16 |
| ARTICLE 5. | COVENANTS OF DISTRICT | 17 |
| Section 501. | Rates and Charges | 17 |
| Section 502. | Books and Accounts; Audit | 17 |
| Section 503. | System to Continue to be Operated on Fiscal Year Basis; Annual | |
| AND | 그 사람이 맛있는 가능에 어려움을 하는 어려워 하는 사람이 되었다. 아이들은 사람이 되었다면 하는 사람이 되었다. 그 아이들은 사람이 없는 사람이 없는 것이다. | 17 |
| Section 504. | 그는 사람들이 되는 사람들이 가는 것이 되었다. 이렇게 되었다면 하는데 그 사람들이 가장하는 것이 되었다면 하는데 사람들이 되었다면 하는데 | 18 |
| Section 505. | Other Covenants Applicable So Long as RD Owns Any Bonds | 19 |
| Section 506. | Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity | 19 |
| Section 507. | Insurance on Motors, Tanks and Structures | |
| ARTICLE 6. | INFERIOR BONDS AND PARITY BONDS | 21 |
| Section 601. | Inferior Bonds | 21 |
| Section 602. | Parity Bonds to Complete the Project | |
| Section 603. | Parity Bonds to Finance Future Improvements | |
| Section 604. | Covenants to be Complied with at Time of Issuance of Parity | - |
| A. 2 | 이 사람들이 얼마나 아니는 그렇게 되었다. | 23 |
| Section 605. | Prepayment Provisions Applicable to Parity Bonds | 23 |
| Section 606. | Consent of the RD Regarding Future Bonds | |
| Section 607. | Priority of Lien; Permissible Disposition of Surplus or Obsolete | |
| A | Facilities | 23 |
| ARTICLE 7. | DEFAULT AND CONSEQUENCES | 25 |
| Section 701. | Events of Default | 25 |
| Section 702. | Consequences of Event of Default | |
| | | 20 |
| ARTICLE 8. | CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS; | |
| | MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS | 26 |
| Section 801. | Resolution Contractual with Bondowners | 26 |
| Section 802. | All Current Bonds are Equal | 26 |

| Section 803. | District Obligated to Refund Current Bonds Owned by | |
|---------------|--|----|
| | Government Whenever Feasible; Defeasement Prohibited | 26 |
| Section 804. | Authorization, Ratification and Confirmation of Approval and | |
| | Execution of Various Documents | 27 |
| Section 805. | Authorization of Condemnation to Acquire Easements and/or | |
| | Sites | 27 |
| ARTICLE 9. | SALE OF CURRENT BONDS | 29 |
| Section 901. | Sale of Current Bonds | 29 |
| Section 902. | Adjustment in Maturities, Prepayment Provisions and Other | |
| | Dates, with Consent of Purchaser if Delivery is Delayed | 29 |
| ARTICLE 10. | CONCLUDING PROVISIONS | 30 |
| Section 1001. | Covenant of District to Take All Necessary Action To Assure | |
| | Compliance with the Code | 30 |
| Section 1002. | Severability Clause | |
| Section 1003. | All Provisions in Conflict Repealed | 31 |
| Section 1004. | Effective Immediately Upon Adoption | |
| | | |

EXHIBIT A - Schedule of Principal Payments EXHIBIT B - Form of Fully Registered Bond EXHIBIT C - Requisition Certificate

BOND RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION OF THE FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF \$2,458,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024, FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE COST (NOT OTHERWISE PROVIDED) OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF EXTENSIONS, ADDITIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE EXISTING WATERWORKS SYSTEM OF SAID DISTRICT; SETTING FORTH TERMS AND CONDITIONS UPON WHICH SAID BONDS MAY BE ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING; PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION, SEGREGATION AND DISTRIBUTION OF THE REVENUES OF SAID WATERWORKS SYSTEM; AND PROVIDING FOR AN ADVERTISED, PUBLIC, COMPETITIVE SALE OF SAID BONDS.

WHEREAS, the waterworks system (the "System") of the Farmdale Water District (the "District") is owned and operated by said District pursuant to Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the "Act"), and

WHEREAS, it is the desire and intent of the District at this time to authorize and provide for the issuance of revenue bonds in the principal amount of \$2,458,000 (the "Current Bonds"), for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the construction of extensions, additions and improvements to the System of the District, in accordance with plans and specifications prepared by HMB Professional Engineers, Inc., and to prescribe the covenants of the District, the rights of Bondowners and the details of the issuance and sale of the proposed Current Bonds, and

WHEREAS, the District is in the process of filing an Application with the Kentucky Public Service Commission for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity authorizing the construction of said extensions, additions and improvements, and

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS; PURPOSE; AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS; SECURITY.

Section 101. Definitions. As used in this Resolution, unless the context requires otherwise:

"Act" refers to Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.

"Beginning Month" refers to the month following the month in which the Current Bonds authorized herein are issued, sold and delivered to the Purchaser thereof.

"Bond Counsel" refers to an attorney or firm of attorneys recognized nationally as experts in the field of municipal bond law and shall be deemed to refer to Rubin & Hays, Louisville, Kentucky, or their successors.

"Bondowner" or "Owner" refer to registered Owners of the Current Bonds at the time issued and outstanding hereunder.

"Bonds" collectively refers to the outstanding Current Bonds, the Prior Bonds and the Parity Bonds.

"Chairman" refers to the elected or appointed Chairman or Chairperson of the Commission.

"Code" refers to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations relating thereto.

"Commission" refers to the Board of Commissioners of the District, or such other body as shall be the governing body of said District under the laws of Kentucky at any given time.

"Construction Account" refers to the Farmdale Water District Waterworks Construction Account, created in Section 301(B) of this Current Bond Resolution.

"Contractors" refers to the general contractors who have been employed by the District to construct the Project.

"Current Bond Resolution" or "Resolution" refer to this Resolution authorizing the Current Bonds.

"Current Bonds" refers to the \$2,458,000 of Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 authorized by this Resolution, to be dated as of the date of issuance thereof.

"Debt Reserve Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Debt Reserve Fund, described in Section 402 of this Resolution.

"Depository Bank" refers to the bank, which shall be a member of the FDIC, which bank shall be designated by the District.

"District" refers to the Farmdale Water District, a water district created pursuant to Chapter 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.

"Engineers" refers to the Engineers or any one of them, who prepared the plans and specifications for the construction of the Project and who will supervise the construction thereof and/or will furnish full time resident inspection of the construction of the Project, and shall be deemed to refer to HMB Professional Engineers, Inc., or a member of said firm, or their successors.

"Event of Default" refers to one or more of the Events of Default set forth in Section 701 of this Resolution.

"FDIC" refers to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or its successors.

"Fiscal Year" refers to the annual accounting period of the District, beginning on January 1, and ending on December 31, of each year.

"Funds" refers to the Construction Account, the Revenue Fund, the Sinking Fund, the Debt Reserve Fund and the Operation and Maintenance Fund.

"Government" refers to the United States of America, or any agency thereof, including RD.

"Independent Consulting Engineer" refers to a consulting engineer or a firm of consulting engineers of recognized excellent reputation in the field of waterworks system engineering, and such definition includes the Engineers named above.

"Interim Lender" refers to Rural Water Financing Agency, Bowling Green, Kentucky, its successors or assigns; or any other financial institution or governmental agency approved by the District.

"Local Counsel" refers to James E. Boyd, Esq., Frankfort, Kentucky, or any other attorney or firm of attorneys designated by the District.

"Multiple Advances" refers to the advance of loan funds from the RD as described in Section 302 of this Resolution.

"Note" refers to a single note or any number of notes, in such form as may be prescribed by the Interim Lender, including any revenue bond anticipation notes issued pursuant to Chapter 58 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, including any renewal or extensions of the Note, issued by the District evidencing the interim financing for the Project as prescribed in Section 302 of this Resolution.

"Operation and Maintenance Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Operation and Maintenance Fund described in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"Outstanding Bonds" refers to the outstanding Bonds, and does not refer to, nor include, any Bonds for the payment of the principal and interest of which sufficient funds will have been deposited and earmarked for payment of Bonds; provided all Outstanding Bonds of any series held by the RD shall be deemed to constitute Outstanding Bonds until paid regardless of the deposit of funds to pay for same.

"Parity Bonds" refers to bonds which may be issued in the future which, pursuant to this Resolution, rank on a basis of parity with the outstanding Bonds, as to priority, security and source of payment, and does not refer to bonds which might be issued so as to rank inferior to the security and source of payment of the outstanding Bonds.

"Prior Bond Resolution" or "2013 Bond Resolution" refer to the Resolution authorizing the Prior Bonds, duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the District on June 27, 2012.

"Prior Bonds" refers to the \$1,858,000 of Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, consisting of \$1,668,000 of Series A Bonds and \$190,000 of Series B Bonds, dated March 29, 2013.

"Project" refers specifically to the construction of the currently proposed extensions, additions and improvements to the System of the District, which Project is being financed by the Current Bonds and by other funds.

"Purchaser" refers to the agency, person, firm or firms, or their successors, to whom the Current Bonds herein authorized are awarded at the public sale of the Current Bonds.

"RD" refers to the United States Department of Agriculture, acting through Rural Development.

"Required Signatures" refers to the signatures necessary to be obtained with reference to the approval of the expenditures to be made from the Construction Account, which required signatures shall consist of the signatures of (1) the Chairman; (2) the Engineers; and (3) the Purchaser; provided, however, any expenditures for issuance and administrative costs and the costs of any equipment which is not permanently affixed to the real estate shall not require the signature or the approval of the Engineers.

"Revenue Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District Revenue Fund, described in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"Secretary" refers to the elected or appointed Secretary of the Commission.

"Sinking Fund" refers to the Farmdale Water District USDA Bond Sinking Fund, described in Section 401 of this Resolution.

"System" refers to the existing waterworks system of the District, together with all extensions, additions and improvements to said System.

"Treasurer" refers to the elected or appointed Treasurer of the Commission.

"U.S. Obligations" refers to bonds or notes which are the direct obligations of the United States of America, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are guaranteed by the United States of America.

All words and terms importing the singular number shall, where the context requires, import the plural number and vice versa. Unless otherwise indicated, references to Articles or Sections refers to those in this Resolution.

Section 102. Purpose. The Current Bonds shall be issued for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the Project, as set out in the plans and specifications prepared by the Engineers. The Commission hereby declares the System of the District, including the extensions, additions and improvements to be constructed, to constitute a revenue producing public project, and said System shall continue to be owned, controlled, operated and maintained by the District as a revenue producing public project pursuant to the Act, so long as any Bonds remain outstanding.

Section 103. Construction Award Approved; Work Authorized. The Commission hereby authorizes, approves, ratifies and confirms its previous action in advertising for and taking steps toward awarding the contracts for the construction of the Project to the lowest and best bidders, and further approves the action of the District officials in entering into formal contracts with said bidders, subject to the necessary approvals being obtained. Authority is hereby given for undertaking the construction of the Project according to the plans and specifications heretofore prepared by the Engineers for the District, after all necessary approvals have been obtained.

<u>Section 104. Declaration of Period of Usefulness.</u> The Commission hereby declares that the period of usefulness of the System is more than forty (40) years from the date of completion of the Project.

Section 105. Authorization of Bonds. The District has heretofore determined that the total cost of the Project, including preliminary expenses, land and rights-of-way, engineering expense, capitalized interest during construction, legal and administrative costs, publication costs, initial deposits required and all incidental expenses, will not exceed \$2,458,000. Therefore, it is hereby determined to be necessary in order for the District to finance the cost (not otherwise provided) of the Project that the District issue a total of \$2,458,000 of Current Bonds.

Accordingly, for the purpose of financing the cost of the Project, under the provisions of the Act, there is hereby authorized to be issued and sold \$2,458,000 principal amount of Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2024.

The Current Bonds shall be dated as of the date of delivery to the Purchaser thereof; shall bear interest from such date at such interest rate as may be fixed by supplemental resolution as a result of the advertised sale and competitive bidding for such Current Bonds, as hereinafter provided; and shall be issued and delivered as prescribed in Section 202 hereof.

Interest on the Current Bonds shall be payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year, provided that the first interest payment period will cover interest only from the date of delivery of the Current Bonds to the ensuing January 1 or July 1, as the case may be. Principal of the Current Bonds shall be payable on January 1 of each of the respective years until maturity, as set out in Section 201 hereof.

<u>Section 106.</u> Recognition of Prior Bonds. The District hereby expressly recognizes and acknowledges that the District has previously created for the benefit and protection of the owners of the Prior Bonds, a certain lien and pledge and certain security rights relating to the System, all as set forth in the Prior Bonds.

Section 107. Current Bonds Shall be Payable Out of Gross Revenues. The Current Bonds, and any additional Parity Bonds that may be issued under the conditions and restrictions hereinafter set forth, shall be secured by and payable out of the gross revenues of the System on a parity with the outstanding Prior Bonds.

<u>Section 108. Lien on Contracts.</u> In addition to the revenue pledge securing the Bonds, a lien is hereby created and granted in favor of the Bondowners on all contracts, and on all other rights of the District pertaining to the System, enforceable by assignment to any receiver or other operator proceeding by authority of any court.

ARTICLE 2. THE BONDS; BOND FORM; PREPAYMENT.

<u>Section 201. Principal Payments.</u> Principal payments due on the Current Bonds shall be as set forth in the schedule of maturities set out in **Exhibit A** attached to this Resolution and incorporated herein.

Section 202. Issuance of Current Bonds; Bond Form. The Purchaser of the Current Bonds at the public sale shall take delivery of the Current Bonds in the form of one or more fully registered bonds, as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein, amounting in the aggregate to the principal amount of the Current Bonds authorized herein, maturing as to principal as set out in Section 201. The Current Bonds shall be numbered R-1 and consecutively upward thereafter. Such Current Bonds shall, upon appropriate execution on behalf of the District as prescribed, constitute the entire bond issue herein authorized, shall be negotiable (subject to registration requirements as to transferability), registered as to principal and interest and payable as directed by the registered Owner.

Section 203. Place of Payment and Manner of Execution. Both principal of and interest on the Current Bonds shall be payable at the place and in the manner set out in the form of such Current Bond. The Current Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the District by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman of the District, with the Corporate Seal of the District affixed thereto and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary of said District.

If either of the officers whose signatures appear on the Current Bonds ceases to be such officer before delivery of said Current Bonds, such signatures shall nevertheless be valid for all purposes the same as if such officers had remained in office until delivery.

Section 204. Provisions as to Prepayment. Except when all of the Current Bonds are held by the Government, principal maturities falling due prior to January 1, 2034, shall not be subject to prepayment. Principal maturities falling due on and after January 1, 2034, shall be subject to prepayment by the District on any date falling on and after January 1, 2033, at par plus accrued interest, without any prepayment penalty.

So long as the registered owner of the Current Bonds is the United States of America, or any agency thereof, the entire principal amount of the Current Bonds, or installments in multiples of \$100, may be prepaid at any time in inverse chronological order of the installments due. Prepayments or extra payments on the Current Bonds shall, after payment of interest, be applied to the installments last to become due hereunder and shall not affect the obligation of the District to pay the remaining installments in accordance with the Current Bonds.

Notice of such prepayment shall be given by certified mail to the Bondowner or his assignee, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for prepayment. Notice of such prepayment may be waived with the written consent of the Bondowner.

ARTICLE 3. CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT; INTERIM FINANCING; APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS; ARBITRAGE LIMITATIONS.

Section 301. Construction Account; Application of Proceeds of Bonds; Other Transfers and Deposits. The Treasurer, or such other District official as shall be designated by the Commission, shall be the custodian of all funds belonging to and associated with the System. All moneys in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC in the Construction Account shall be secured by the Depository Bank in accordance with U. S. Treasury Department Circular No. 176. The officials of the District entrusted with the receipt and disbursement of revenues of the System and the custody of valuable property shall be covered by a fidelity bond in the amount of not less than \$181,000 (the "Fidelity Bond"), or such larger amount as the RD may require, which Fidelity Bond shall be effective and secured by a surety company approved by the RD so long as it is owner of any of the Current Bonds. The RD and the District shall be named co-obligees in such Fidelity Bond and the amount thereof shall not be reduced without the written consent of the RD. Whenever sums in the Funds shall exceed \$181,000, the Fidelity Bond shall be increased accordingly as requested by and with the approval of the RD.

- A. Covenants Applicable if RD Purchases Current Bonds. It is acknowledged that all covenants herein with reference to the necessity for approval of the RD, the necessity of observing RD regulations and procedures and the necessity of using RD forms (the "RD Forms"), shall apply only if the RD is the Purchaser of the Current Bonds and only so long as the RD holds the Current Bonds thereafter. In the event that the RD shall not be the Purchaser of the Current Bonds, or, after purchasing same, shall sell or transfer the Current Bonds to an Owner who shall not be the Government, all covenants herein with reference to the necessity for approval of the RD, the necessity of observing RD regulations and procedures, and the necessity of using RD Forms, shall not be applicable.
- B. Application of Proceeds of Current Bonds. The proceeds of the Current Bonds shall be applied as follows:
 - (1) Payment of Interim Financing, Costs of Project and Costs of Issuance. Simultaneously with the delivery of the Current Bonds, there shall immediately be paid to the Interim Lender (or the RD if Multiple Advances are made) an amount sufficient to pay principal of and interest on any temporary loans borrowed by the District in anticipation of the sale and delivery of the Current Bonds. Also, at the time of delivery of the Current Bonds, there shall be paid all amounts then due and payable in connection with the costs of the Project and in connection with the issuance of the Current Bonds.
 - (2) Construction Account. If and to the extent that the proceeds of the Current Bonds shall be in excess of the amount necessary to pay the interest, principal and costs referred to in subparagraph B(1) of this Section, such excess amount shall immediately be deposited in the "Farmdale Water District Waterworks Construction Account" hereby created, which shall be established at the Depository Bank.

(3) Withdrawal of Funds From Construction Account. Prior to the expenditure by the District of any moneys from the Construction Account, the District must obtain written approval from the RD as to such expenditures, if the RD is the Owner of any Outstanding Bonds. The proceeds of said Construction Account shall be withdrawn only on checks signed by the Chairman, the Treasurer (or by such other official of the District as may be authorized by the Commission), provided such official shall be covered by the Fidelity Bond required by Section 301 of this Resolution, in payment for services and/or materials supplied in connection with the Project, as evidenced by (1) a Requisition Certificate; and (2) invoices and/or partial payment estimates bearing the written approval of the Engineers and the Chairman (or by such other official of the District as may be authorized by the Commission), and which invoices and/or partial payment estimates must have been reviewed and approved for payment by the designated RD official.

Written approval or certification of the Engineers shall not be required for matters not under the jurisdiction of the Engineers, such as legal fees, land acquisition and related items.

During construction, the District shall disburse Construction Account funds in a manner consistent with RD Instruction 1780.

The District shall prepare and submit any and all RD Forms required by the RD. Periodic audits of the District's Construction Account records shall be made by RD as determined by it to be necessary.

- (4) Transfer of Capitalized Interest to Sinking Fund. There shall be transferred from the Construction Account an amount sufficient to provide for capitalized interest (initially estimated at \$30,000) during the construction of the Project, as approved by the Engineers and by the RD. If and to the extent not theretofore expended in paying interest on interim financing and if and to the extent then needed to pay interest during the remaining period of construction of the Project, such amount so transferred from the Construction Account shall be deposited in the Sinking Fund.
- disbursement of amounts on deposit in the Construction Account, all such funds, or such portion of said amounts on deposit in said Construction Account as is designated by the Commission, shall be invested for the benefit of such Construction Account in Certificates of Deposit, savings accounts or U.S. Obligations which may be converted readily into cash, having a maturity date prior to the date when the sums invested will be needed for costs of the Project (as determined by the Engineers, the Chairman and the RD), provided that to the extent that any amounts on deposit in said Depository Bank shall cause the total deposits of the District in said Depository Bank to exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, the same shall be continuously secured by a valid pledge of U.S. Obligations, having an equivalent market value, in conformity with Section 66.480 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes. Investments in Certificates of Deposit or savings accounts may be made only in such

Certificates or accounts of an FDIC bank. Any such investments will be a part of the Construction Account, and income from such investments will be credited to the Construction Account. All such investments shall be subject to the limitations set out in Section 303 hereof.

(6) Statements of Contractors, Engineers and Attorneys as to Payment. Prior to the delivery of the Current Bonds, if the RD is the Purchaser of the Current Bonds, the District will be required to provide the RD with statements from the Contractors, Engineers and attorneys for the District that they have been paid to date in accordance with their contract or other agreements and, in the case of any Contractor, that he has paid his suppliers and subcontractors. Any exceptions must be authorized under RD Instruction 1780.

(7) Disposition of Balance in Construction Account After Completion of Project. When the Project has been completed and all construction costs have been paid in full, as certified by the Engineers for the District and/or by the RD, any balance then remaining in the Construction Account may, with the consent of the RD, be applied to the cost of constructing additional extensions, additions and improvements to the System (the "Additional Construction"). If such Additional Construction is to be undertaken by the Contractors previously engaged in the Project, such Additional Construction may be authorized by a change order.

If there is a balance remaining in the Construction Account after such Additional Construction, such balance shall be transferred to the Sinking Fund, whereupon said Construction Account shall be closed. Such remaining balance in the Construction Account so transferred to the Sinking Fund shall be used by the District immediately to prepay principal installments due on the Current Bonds in the inverse order of maturities without prepayment penalty, provided further that any balance insufficient to prepay at least \$100 of the principal payment falling due in any year on the Bonds will be transferred to the Debt Reserve Fund.

Section 302. Interim Financing Authorization.

A. Interim Financing. The District shall use interim financing for the Project during construction of that portion of the cost of the Project financed by the Current Bonds, if available at reasonable rates and terms.

The borrowing of up to the aggregate sum of \$2,458,000 from the Interim Lender is hereby authorized; and the Chairman is hereby authorized to execute the Note in the name and on behalf of the District. Each advance under the Note shall evidence a loan by the Interim Lender to the District for services rendered and/or materials supplied in connection with the Project, as evidenced by a Requisition Certificate.

Interim financing shall be disbursed as follows:

- At the direction of the District, the Interim Lender shall disburse the proceeds of the Note by cashier's checks directly to the parties entitled thereto as set forth in the Requisition Certificate; or
- (2) At the direction of the District, the Interim Lender shall deposit the proceeds of the Note in the Construction Account, in which event amounts of the District on deposit therein shall, until expended to the extent that same shall exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, be fully secured by a pledge of U.S. Obligations.

The aggregate of the principal amount of all Notes shall not exceed \$2,458,000. Each Note which is renewed or superseded shall be simultaneously cancelled by the Interim Lender and transmitted to the Treasurer. The rate of interest applicable to each Note shall not exceed a reasonable rate, which rate is subject to the approval of the RD.

The District hereby covenants and agrees with the Interim Lender that upon the issuance and delivery of the Current Bonds, the District will apply the proceeds thereof, to whatever extent may be necessary, in payment of the principal amount of the Note, together with accrued interest thereon to the date of such payment; and the proceeds of the Current Bonds are hereby pledged therefor, and such pledge shall constitute a first and prior charge against said proceeds.

It is understood that the foregoing constitutes an alternative method of obtaining interim financing, and does not preclude the authorization and sale, by public advertisement or otherwise, of bond anticipation notes to the most favorable bidder on the open market, by concurrent or subsequent proceedings of the District.

B. Multiple Advances by RD. In the event the Current Bonds are purchased by the RD, and in the event the District is unable to obtain a commitment for interim financing for the Project from any Interim Lender at reasonable rates and terms, the Chairman is authorized to request Multiple Advances of loan funds from the RD.

If the RD agrees to make Multiple Advances to the District pending the delivery of the Current Bonds, the Chairman is hereby authorized to execute in the name and on behalf of the District any number of Notes. Each such Note, evidencing an advance of funds by the RD to the District, shall be in the form prescribed by the RD.

Each request for an advance from the RD shall be accompanied by a Requisition Certificate. The District will also furnish to the RD, prior to the receipt of each Multiple Advance, whatever additional documentation shall be requested by the RD, including an updated supplemental title opinion of Local Counsel and an updated supplemental preliminary legal opinion of Bond Counsel.

The proceeds of any Multiple Advances shall be either (i) disbursed directly to the parties entitled thereto for services and/or materials supplied in connection with the Project; or (ii) deposited into the Construction Account and disbursed in accordance with the provisions of

Section 301 hereof, in which event amounts on deposit in such Construction Account shall, until expended, to the extent that same shall exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, be fully secured by a pledge of U.S. Obligations.

The proceeds of the Current Bonds are hereby pledged to the repayment of such Multiple Advances, and such pledge shall constitute a first and prior pledge against such proceeds. The District further pledges the revenues of the System to the repayment of said Multiple Advances, subject to the vested rights and priorities of the pledges securing the Outstanding Bonds.

Section 303. Arbitrage Limitations on Investment of Proceeds. The District covenants and certifies, in compliance with the Code, on the basis of known facts and reasonable expectations on the date of adoption of this Resolution, that it is not expected that the proceeds of the Current Bonds will be used in a manner which would cause the Current Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The District covenants to the Owners of the Current Bonds that (1) the District will make no use of the proceeds of said Current Bonds which, if such use had been reasonably expected on the date of issue of such Current Bonds, would have caused such Current Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds"; and (2) the District will comply with all of the requirements of the Code to whatever extent is necessary to assure that the Current Bonds shall not be treated as or constitute "arbitrage bonds" and that the interest on the Bonds shall be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Prior to or at the time of delivery of the Current Bonds, the Chairman and/or the Treasurer (who are jointly and severally charged with the responsibility for the issuance of the Current Bonds) are authorized to execute such certifications as shall be required by Bond Counsel, setting out all known and contemplated facts concerning the anticipated construction, expenditures and investments, including the execution of necessary and/or desirable certifications of the type contemplated by Section 148 of the Code in order to assure that interest on the Current Bonds shall be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and that the Current Bonds will not be treated as "arbitrage bonds".

ARTICLE 4. FLOW OF FUNDS.

Section 401. Funds. The was established in the Prior Bond Resolution the following funds and accounts:

- (a) Farmdale Water District Revenue Fund
- (b) Farmdale Water District Sinking Fund
- (c) Farmdale Water District Debt Reserve Fund
- (d) Farmdale Water District Operation and Maintenance Fund

All of the Funds shall be maintained with the Depository Bank so long as any Bonds remain outstanding, subject to the right of the District to designate a different depository.

Section 402. Flow of Funds. All proceedings preliminary to and in connection with the issuance of the Outstanding Bonds, including provisions made for (i) the receipt, custody and application of the proceeds of the Outstanding Bonds; (ii) the operation of the System on a revenue-producing basis; (iii) the segregation, allocation and custody of the revenues derived from the operation of the System; (iv) the enforcement and payment of the Outstanding Bonds; and (v) the depreciation of the System; and all other covenants for the benefit of Bondowners set out in the Prior Bond Resolution, are hereby ratified and confirmed and shall continue in force and inure to the security and benefit of the Outstanding Bonds, the same as if such provisions and proceedings were set out in full herein; provided, further, that after the issuance of the Current Bonds, the income and revenues of the System shall be collected, segregated, accounted for and distributed as follows:

A. Revenue Fund. The District covenants and agrees that it will continue to deposit in the Revenue Fund, promptly as received from time to time, all revenues of the System, as same may be extended and improved from time to time. The moneys in the Revenue Fund shall continue to be used, disbursed and applied by the District only for the purpose and in the manner and order of priorities specified in the Prior Bond Resolution, as hereinafter modified by this Resolution, all as permitted by the Act, and in accordance with previous contractual commitments.

B. Sinking Fund. At or after the delivery of the Current Bonds, there shall be transferred from the Construction Account to the Sinking Fund an amount sufficient to provide for capitalized interest (initially estimated at \$30,000) on the Current Bonds during the construction of the Project, if and to the extent not theretofore expended in paying interest on interim financing and if and to the extent then needed to pay interest during the remaining period of construction of the Project.

There shall be transferred from the Revenue Fund and deposited into the Sinking Fund on or before the 20th day of each month, for payment of interest on and principal of the Prior Bonds and the Current Bonds, a sum equal to the total of the following:

- An amount equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the next succeeding six-month interest payment to become due on the Prior Bonds and the Current Bonds, plus
- (2) A sum equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal of any Prior Bonds and Current Bonds maturing on the next succeeding January 1.

If the District for any reason shall fail to make any monthly deposit as required, then an amount equal to the deficiency shall be set apart and deposited into the Sinking Fund out of the first available revenues in the ensuing months, which amount shall be in addition to the monthly deposit otherwise required during such succeeding months. Whenever there shall accumulate in the Sinking Fund amounts in excess of the requirements during the next twelve months for paying the principal of and interest due on the Prior Bonds and the Current Bonds, as same fall due, such excess may be used for redemption or prepayment of any Prior Bonds and Current Bonds, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, prior to maturity.

C. Debt Reserve Fund. It is hereby determined that upon the issuance of the Current Bonds, and upon completion of the Project, as certified by the Engineers and by the RD, there shall next be transferred from the Revenue Fund the sum of at least \$800 each month which shall be deposited into the Debt Reserve Fund until there is accumulated in such Debt Reserve Fund the sum of at least \$96,000, which amount shall be maintained, and when necessary, restored to said sum of \$96,000, so long as any of the Current Bonds are outstanding and unpaid. These deposits are in addition to the deposits required by the Prior Bond Resolution.

As further security for the Bondowners and for the benefit of the District, it has been and is hereby provided that in addition to the monthly transfers required to be made from the Revenue Fund into the Debt Reserve Fund, there shall be deposited into said Debt Reserve Fund all proceeds of connection fees collected from potential customers (except the amounts necessary to pay the actual costs and service connections applicable to said potential customers) to aid in the financing of the cost of future extensions, additions and improvements to the System, plus the proceeds of any property damage insurance (not otherwise used to replace damaged or destroyed property); and any such amounts or proceeds so deposited shall be used solely and only for the purposes intended.

Moneys in the Debt Reserve Fund may be withdrawn and used by the District, upon appropriate certification of the Commission, for the purpose of paying the cost of unusual or extraordinary maintenance, repairs, renewals and replacements not included in the annual budget of current expenses and/or of paying the costs of constructing future extensions, additions and improvements to the System which will either enhance its revenue-producing capacity or will provide a higher degree of service, and when necessary, for the purpose of making payments of principal and interest on the Bonds if the amount on deposit in the Sinking Fund is not sufficient to make such payments.

- D. Operation and Maintenance Fund. There shall next be transferred monthly from the Revenue Fund and deposited into said Operation and Maintenance Fund, sums sufficient to meet the current expenses of operating and maintaining the System. The balance maintained in said Operation and Maintenance Fund shall not be in excess of the amount required to cover anticipated System expenditures for a two-month period pursuant to the District's annual budget.
- E. Monthly Principal and Interest Payments if Requested by the RD. So long as any of the Current Bonds are held or insured by the RD, the District shall, if requested by the RD, make the payments required by this Section 402, in monthly installments to the RD or to the insured Owners of the Bonds.
- F. Surplus Funds. Subject to the provisions for the disposition of the income and revenues of the System as set forth hereinabove, which provisions are cumulative, and after paying or providing for the payment of debt service on any subordinate obligations, there shall be transferred, within sixty days after the end of each fiscal year, the balance of excess funds in the Revenue Fund on such date, to the Debt Reserve Fund for application in accordance with the terms of this Resolution or to the Sinking Fund to be applied to the maximum extent feasible, to the prompt purchase or redemption of Outstanding Bonds.
- G. Investment and Miscellaneous Provisions. All monies in the Sinking Fund and the Debt Reserve Fund shall be deposited in the Depository Bank, or such portion thereof as is designated by the Commission. All monies in the Sinking Fund and the Debt Reserve Fund shall be invested for the benefit of such respective Funds in Certificates of Time Deposit or savings accounts of the Depository Bank or in U.S. Obligations which may be converted readily into cash, having a maturity date prior to the date when the sums invested will be needed for the purposes for which such funds may be expended, provided that to the extent that any amount of the District on deposit in the Depository Bank shall cause the total deposits of the District in said Depository Bank to exceed the amount insured by the FDIC, such excess amount shall be continuously secured by a valid pledge of U.S. Obligations, having an equivalent market value, in conformity with Section 66.480 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes.

All payments into the Funds shall be made on or before the twentieth (20th) day of each month, except that when the twentieth (20th) day of any month shall be a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday, then such payment shall be made on the next succeeding business day.

All monies held in any of the Funds shall be kept apart from all other District funds and shall be deposited in the Depository Bank, and all such deposits which cause the aggregate of all deposits of the District therein to be in excess of the amount secured by FDIC, shall (unless invested as herein authorized) be secured by a surety bond or bonds or by a pledge of U.S. Obligations, having a market value equivalent to such deposit.

The Treasurer shall keep appropriate records as to payment of principal and interest installments and as to payment of principal of and interest on any Bonds.

Section 403. Current Bonds on a Parity with Prior Bonds. It is hereby certified and declared that prior to the issuance of any of the Current Bonds, there will have been procured and filed with the District (i) a letter from the RD to the effect that the RD agrees to the issuance of the Current Bonds ranking on a parity as to security and source of payment with the Prior Bonds, all of which are owned by the RD, together with (ii) a certification signed by the RD to the effect that a legend has been typed, stamped or otherwise affixed on each of the Prior Bonds held by the RD, evidencing the agreement of the RD as the then Owner of the Prior Bonds, to the issuance of the Current Bonds so as to rank on a parity with the Prior Bonds, such legend to be in substantially the following form:

The holder of this Bond has consented to the issuance of \$2,458,000 of Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2024 ranking on a parity as to security and source of payment with this Bond.

Accordingly, it is hereby found and declared that the Current Bonds shall rank and be payable on a parity with said outstanding Prior Bonds from the gross income and revenues of the System.

ARTICLE 5. COVENANTS OF DISTRICT

Section 501. Rates and Charges. The District shall charge such rates and charges for all services and facilities rendered by the System, which rates and charges shall be reasonable, taking into account and consideration the cost and value of the System, the cost of maintaining, repairing and operating same and the amounts necessary for the payment of principal of and interest on Outstanding Bonds against the System. The District shall charge such rates and charges as shall be adequate to meet the requirements of Articles 4 and 5 hereof.

The District covenants that it will not reduce the rates and charges for the services rendered by the System without first filing with the Secretary a certification of an Independent Consulting Engineer that the annual net revenues (defined as gross revenues less operating expenses) of the then existing System for the fiscal year preceding the year in which such reduction is proposed, as such annual net revenues are adjusted, after taking into account the projected reduction in annual net revenues anticipated to result from any such proposed rate decrease, are equal to not less than 120% of the average annual debt service requirements for principal and interest on all of the then Outstanding Bonds payable from the revenues of the System, calculated in the manner specified in Section 603 hereof.

Section 502. Books and Accounts; Audit. The District shall maintain proper records and accounts relating to the operation of the System and the District's financial affairs; and the Bondowners, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect the facilities of the System and all records, accounts and data relating thereto. An annual audit shall be made of the books and accounts pertinent to the System by a Certified Public Accountant licensed in Kentucky. No later than ninety (90) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, copies of such audit reports certified by such Certified Public Accountant shall be promptly mailed to the RD without request, so long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Bonds, and to any Bondowner that may have made a written request for same.

Monthly operating reports shall be furnished to the RD and to any Bondowner requesting same, during the first two (2) years of operation after completion of the Project, and whenever and so long as the District is delinquent in any of the covenants set out in the Prior Bond Resolution or this Current Bond Resolution. Thereafter, quarterly operating reports shall be furnished at all other times to the RD and to any Bondowner requesting the same.

Section 503. System to Continue to be Operated on Fiscal Year Basis; Annual Budget. While any of the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, and to the extent permitted by law, the System shall continue to be operated and maintained on a Fiscal Year basis.

Not later than sixty (60) days before the end of each Fiscal Year, the District agrees to cause to be prepared a proposed annual budget of operating expenses (the "Proposed Budget") of the System for the then ensuing Fiscal Year, itemized on the basis of monthly requirements. A copy of said Proposed Budget shall be mailed to any Bondowner who may request in writing a copy of such

Proposed Budget and to the RD without request, if the Government is the Owner of any of the Bonds.

For the purpose of the Proposed Budget, operating expenses shall include all reasonable and necessary expenses of operating, repairing, maintaining and insuring the System, but shall exclude depreciation and debt service payments. The District covenants that the operating expenses incurred in any year will not exceed the reasonable and necessary amounts therefor, and that the District will not expend any amount or incur any obligation for operation or maintenance and repair in excess of the amounts provided for operating expenses in the annual budget, except upon resolution by the District that such expenses are necessary to operate and maintain the System.

Not later than sixty (60) days before the end of each Fiscal Year, the District shall prepare an estimate of gross revenues to be derived from the operation of the System for said Fiscal Year, and, to the extent that said gross revenues are insufficient (a) to pay debt service requirements on all Outstanding Bonds during the ensuing Fiscal Year, (b) to accumulate and maintain all required reserves enumerated herein and (c) to pay operating expenses, the District shall revise the rates and charges sufficiently to provide the funds so required.

If the Owners of at least 50% of the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds, or the Government so long as it is the Owner of any of said Outstanding Bonds, so request, the Commission shall hold an open hearing not later than thirty (30) days before the beginning of the ensuing Fiscal Year, at which time any Bondowner may appear by agent or attorney and may file written objections to such proposed budget. Notice of the time and place of such hearing shall be mailed at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing to each registered Bondowner and to the Government.

The District covenants that annually before the first day of the Fiscal Year, the annual budget for the upcoming Fiscal Year will be adopted substantially in accordance with the Proposed Budget, and that no expenditures for operation and maintenance expenses of the System in excess of the budgeted amount shall be made during such Fiscal Year unless directed by said District by a specific resolution duly adopted.

<u>Section 504. General Covenants.</u> The District, through its Commission, hereby covenants and agrees with the Owners of the Bonds that:

- It will faithfully and punctually perform all duties with reference to the System required by the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky;
- (2) It will make and collect reasonable and sufficient rates and charges for services and facilities rendered by the System;
- (3) It will segregate the revenues and income from the System and make application thereof consistent with and as provided by this Resolution;

- (4) Unless the written consent of the Owners of a majority of the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds has been obtained, the District agrees not to sell, lease, mortgage or in any manner dispose of any integral part of the System, including any and all appurtenances thereto and extensions, additions and improvements that may be made thereto, until all of the Outstanding Bonds shall have been paid or provided for in full, as provided herein; subject to the provisions of Section 607 hereof;
- (5) It will maintain in good condition and continuously operate the System and appurtenances thereto and will charge such rates and charges for the services rendered thereby so that the gross income and revenues will be sufficient at all times (i) to pay the interest on and principal of the Outstanding Bonds as same become due; (ii) to pay the cost of operating and maintaining the System; and (iii) to provide for an adequate depreciation account; and
- (6) It will carry and maintain insurance on properties of the System subject to loss or damage in amounts and against hazards substantially in accordance with the practices of other districts, cities or corporations which own and maintain waterworks systems under similar conditions; and so long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Outstanding Bonds, the Government will be listed as co-beneficiary on any such policy; and the District shall further comply with the insurance requirements of Section 506 hereof (involving insurance on motors, tanks and structures).

Section 505. Other Covenants Applicable So Long as RD Owns Any Bonds. So long as the RD shall own any of the Bonds, the District shall comply with such RD regulations, requirements and requests as shall be made by the RD, including the furnishing of operating and other financial statements, in such form and substance and for such periods as may be requested by the RD, the carrying of insurance of such types and in such amounts as the RD may specify, with insurance carriers acceptable to the RD and compliance with all of the terms and conditions of the Loan Resolution (RD Form 1780-27) adopted and executed by the District, which is hereby authorized, approved, ratified and confirmed.

<u>Section 506. Civil Rights and Equal Opportunity.</u> The District covenants and agrees to comply with all applicable Federal laws and statutes, including but not limited to:

(a) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The District acknowledges that under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), no handicapped individual in the United States shall, solely by reason of their handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving RHS financial assistance.

- (b) Civil Rights Act of 1964. The District acknowledges that it is subject to, and its Facilities must be operated in accordance with, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) and Subpart E of Part 1901 of said Title VI, particularly as it relates to conducting and reporting of compliance reviews.
- (c) Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990. The District acknowledges that the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) [the "ADA Act"] prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in employment, state and local government services, public transportation, public accommodations, facilities, and telecommunications. Title II of the ADA Act applies to facilities operated by state and local public entities that provide services, programs, and activities. Title III of the ADA Act applies to facilities owned, leased, or operated by private entities that accommodate the public.
- (d) Age Discrimination Act of 1975. The District acknowledges that the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.) provides that no person in the United States shall, on the basis of age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.
- (e) Limited English Proficiency (LEP) under Executive Order 13166. The District acknowledges that LEP statutes and authorities prohibit exclusion from participation in, denial of benefits of, and discrimination under Federally-assisted and/or conducted programs on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 covers program access for LEP persons. LEP persons are individuals who do not speak English as their primary language and who have a limited ability to read, speak, write or understand English. These individuals may be entitled to language assistance, free of charge. The District agrees to take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons receive the language assistance necessary to have meaningful access to RHS programs, services and information the District provides. These protections are pursuant to Executive Order 13166 entitled "Improving Access to Services by Persons with Limited English Proficiency" and further affirmed in the USDA Departmental Regulation 4330-005 "Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Persons with Limited English Proficiency in Programs and Activities Conducted by USDA.

Section 507. Insurance on Motors, Tanks and Structures. The District shall (a) immediately after the adoption of this Resolution and (b) at the time of final acceptance of the Project, insure all electric motors, elevated water storage tanks, pumping stations and major structures of the System in an amount recommended by the Engineers and approved by the RD, so long as the RD is the Owner of any of the Bonds, for the hazards usually covered in such area, and shall similarly insure same in an amount recommended by the Engineers, without the necessity of approval by the RD if and whenever the District has Outstanding Bonds against the System and none of such Outstanding Bonds are owned by the RD.

ARTICLE 6. INFERIOR BONDS AND PARITY BONDS

<u>Section 601. Inferior Bonds.</u> Except as hereinafter provided below in this Article, the District shall not, so long as any Bonds are outstanding, issue any additional bonds payable from the revenues of the System unless the security and/or pledge of the revenues to secure such additional bonds are made inferior and subordinate in all respects to the security of the Bonds.

The District expressly reserves the right at any time to issue its bonds or other obligations payable from the revenues of the System and not ranking on a parity basis with the Current Bonds, without any proof of previous earnings or net revenues, provided that the consent of the RD must be obtained prior to the issuance of any inferior bonds so long as the RD owns any of the Bonds, and provided further that, after the initial completion of the Project, such inferior bonds may be issued only for the purpose of providing for future extensions, additions and improvements to the System, and only in express recognition of the priorities, liens and rights created and existing for the security, source of payment and protection of the Outstanding Bonds; provided further, that nothing in this Section is intended to restrict or shall be construed as a restriction upon, the ordinary refunding all or a portion of the Outstanding Bonds.

Section 602. Parity Bonds to Complete the Project. The District hereby certifies, covenants and agrees that in the event that the cost of completion of the construction of the Project shall exceed the moneys available to the District from any and all sources, the District shall have the right, if necessary, to provide for such excess, and only such excess, through the issuance of Parity Bonds, provided the District has obtained a certification from the Engineers to the effect that it is necessary to issue the desired amount of Parity Bonds in order to enable the District to pay the cost (not otherwise provided) of the completion of the Project, and provided the District has complied with the provisions of Section 603 below or has obtained:

- (a) the consent of the RD if the Government is as the Owner of the Outstanding Bonds at that time or the consent of any other Owners of the Outstanding Bonds, and
- (b) the consent of (1) the RD if the Government is the purchaser of the Current Bonds; or (2) the Owners of at least 75% of the principal amount of the Current Bonds outstanding, if the Current Bonds have been issued, sold and delivered and are held by Owners other than the Government.

Section 603. Parity Bonds to Finance Future Improvements. The District reserved the right and privilege, and does hereby reserve the right and privilege, of issuing additional Parity Bonds, but only under the conditions specified in the Current Bond Resolution, which conditions are as follows:

The District further reserves the right to add new waterworks facilities and/or to finance future extensions, additions and improvements to the System by the issuance of one or more

additional series of Parity Bonds to be secured by a parity lien on and ratably payable on a parity with the Current Bonds, from the revenues of the System, provided:

- (a) The facilities to be constructed from the proceeds of the additional Parity Bonds are made a part of the System and their revenues are pledged as additional security for the additional Parity Bonds and for the Outstanding Bonds.
- (b) The District is in compliance with all covenants and undertakings in connection with all of the Outstanding Bonds.
- (c) The annual net revenues (defined as gross revenues less operating expenses), of the then existing System for the Fiscal Year preceding the year in which such Parity Bonds are to be issued, adjusted as hereinafter provided, shall be certified by an independent Certified Public Accountant to be equal at least one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the average annual debt service requirements for principal and interest on all Outstanding Bonds payable from the revenues of the System, plus the anticipated debt service requirements of any Parity Bonds then proposed to be issued. The calculation of average annual debt service requirements of principal and interest on the additional Parity Bonds to be issued shall, regardless of whether such additional Parity Bonds are to be serial or term bonds, be determined on the basis of the principal of and interest on such Parity Bonds being payable in approximately equal annual installments.
- (d) The annual net revenues referred to above may be adjusted for the purpose of the foregoing computations to reflect:
 - any revisions in the System's schedule of rates or charges being imposed on or before the time of the issuance of any such additional Parity Bonds, and
 - (2) any increase in the annual net revenues to be realized from the proposed extensions, additions and improvements being financed (in whole or in part) by such additional Parity Bonds;

provided all such adjustments shall be based upon and included in a certification of an Independent Consulting Engineer.

(e) Compliance with Section 603(a) through (d) shall not be necessary for the issuance of Parity Bonds if the District has obtained (1) the written consent of the RD for the issuance of such Parity Bonds, if the Government is the Owner of any Bonds at the time of issuance of such Parity Bonds; and (2) the written consent of the Owners of all of the then Outstanding Bonds, and no other prerequisite need be complied with by the District in order to issue Parity Bonds.

<u>Section 604. Covenants to be Complied with at Time of Issuance of Parity Bonds.</u> The District hereby covenants and agrees that in the event any Parity Bonds are issued, the District shall:

- (a) Adjust the monthly amount to be deposited into the Sinking Fund on the same basis as that prescribed in the provisions establishing such Sinking Fund, to reflect the average annual debt service requirements of the Parity Bonds;
- (b) Adjust the minimum annual amount to be deposited monthly into the Debt Reserve Fund on the same basis as that prescribed in the provisions establishing such Debt Reserve Fund, taking into account the future debt service requirements of all Bonds which will then be outstanding against the System; and
- (c) Make such Parity Bonds payable as to principal on January 1 of each year in which principal falls due and payable as to interest on January 1 and July 1 of each year until the final maturity of such Parity Bonds.

Section 605. Prepayment Provisions Applicable to Parity Bonds. If, in connection with any subsequently issued series of Parity Bonds, it is provided that excess revenues in the Revenue Fund shall be used to prepay Outstanding Bonds in advance of scheduled maturity, or if the District at its option undertakes to prepay Outstanding Bonds in advance of scheduled maturity, it is agreed and understood, for so long as the Government owns any of the Outstanding Bonds, that no such prepayment will be effected without the approval of the RD.

<u>Section 606.</u> Consent of the RD Regarding Future Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Resolution, the District agrees that so long as the Government owns any Outstanding Bonds against and/or payable from the revenues of the System, the District will not issue any future bonds, notes or other obligations against, secured by or payable from the revenues of the System without the written consent of the RD.

Section 607. Priority of Lien; Permissible Disposition of Surplus or Obsolete Facilities. The District covenants and agrees that so long as any of the Prior Bonds and/or Bonds are outstanding, the District will not sell or otherwise dispose of any of the facilities of the System, or any part thereof, and, except as provided above, the District will not create or permit to be created any charge or lien on the revenues thereof ranking equal or prior to the charge or lien of the Outstanding Bonds. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District may at any time permanently abandon the use of, or sell at fair market value, any part of the facilities of the System, provided that:

- (a) The District is in compliance with all covenants and undertakings in connection with all of the Outstanding Bonds, and the required reserves for such Outstanding Bonds will have been accumulated;
- (b) The District will, in the event of any such sale, apply the proceeds to either (1) redemption of Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the provisions governing prepayment of bonds in advance of maturity; or (2) replacement

- of the facility so disposed of by another facility, the revenues of which shall be incorporated into the System, as hereinbefore provided;
- (c) The District certifies, in good faith, prior to any abandonment of use, that the facilities to be abandoned are no longer economically feasible of producing net revenues; and
- (d) The District certifies, in good faith, that the estimated net revenues of the remaining facilities of the System for the then next succeeding Fiscal Year, plus the estimated net revenues of the facilities, if any, to be added to the System, comply with the earnings requirements hereinbefore provided in the provisions and conditions governing the issuance of Parity Bonds.

Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, so long as any Bonds are held by the Government, the District shall not dispose of its title to the System or to any part thereof, without first obtaining the written consent of the RD.

ARTICLE 7. DEFAULT AND CONSEQUENCES

Section 701. Events of Default. The following items shall constitute an Event of Default on the part of the District:

- (a) The failure to pay principal of the Bonds as and when same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption.
- (b) The failure to pay any installment of interest on the Bonds when the same shall become due and payable or, if any or all of the Outstanding Bonds are owned by the RD, within thirty (30) days thereafter.
- (c) The default by the District in the due or punctual performance of any of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, the Prior Bond Resolution or in this Resolution.
- (d) The failure to promptly repair, replace or reconstruct facilities of the System that have been damaged and/or destroyed.
- (e) The entering of any order or decree with the consent or the acquiescence of the District, appointing a receiver of all or any part of the System or any revenues thereof; or if such order or decree shall be entered without the acquiescence or consent of the District, its failure to have the order vacated, discharged or stayed on appeal within sixth (60) days after entry.

Section 702. Consequences of Event of Default. Any Owner of the Current Bonds may enforce and compel the performance of all duties and obligations of the District set forth herein. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, then upon the filing of a suit by any Owner of said the Current Bonds, any court having jurisdiction of the action may appoint a receiver to administer said System on behalf of the District with power to charge and collect rates sufficient to provide for the payment of operating and maintenance expenses and for the payment of principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds and to provide and apply the income and revenues in conformity with this Resolution and with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

The District hereby agrees to transfer to any bona fide receiver or other subsequent operator of the System, pursuant to any valid court order in a proceeding brought to enforce collection or payment of the District's obligations, all contracts and other rights of the District pertaining to the System, conditionally, for such time only as such receiver or operator shall operate by authority of the court. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Owner of any of the Outstanding Bonds may require the governing body of the District by appropriate order to raise the rates a reasonable amount consistent with the requirements of this Resolution.

ARTICLE 8. CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS; MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Section 801. Resolution Contractual with Bondowners. The provisions of this Resolution constitute a contract between the District and its Commission and the Owners of the Current Bonds as may be outstanding from time to time; and after the issuance of any of said Current Bonds, no change, alteration or variation of any kind of the provisions of this Resolution shall be made in any manner which will affect an Owner's rights except as herein provided or except with the written consent of all Bondowners until such time as all of the Current Bonds and the interest thereon have been paid in full or fully provided for; provided that the Commission may adopt any resolution for any purpose not inconsistent with the terms of this Resolution and which shall not impair the security of the Owners of the Current Bonds and/or for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective or inconsistent provisions contained herein or in any resolution or other proceedings pertaining hereto.

It is further agreed that the Owners of 75% in principal amount of the Current Bonds at any time outstanding shall have the right to consent to and approve the adoption of resolutions or other proceedings, modifying or amending any of the terms or provisions contained in this Resolution, subject to the conditions that (a) this Resolution shall not be so modified in any manner that may adversely affect the rights of the Owners of any of the Prior Bonds, nor in any manner that may adversely affect the rights of any certain Owners of the Outstanding Bonds without similarly affecting the rights of all Owners of such Outstanding Bonds, or to reduce the percentage of the number of Owners whose consent is required to effect a further modification and (b) no such change may be effected without the consent of the RD so long as the RD owns any of the Outstanding Bonds.

Section 802. All Current Bonds are Equal. The Current Bonds authorized herein shall not be entitled to priority one over the other in the application of the income and revenues of the System, or with respect to the security for their payment, regardless of the time or times of their issuance, it being the intention that there shall be no priority among any of the Current Bonds regardless of the fact that they may be actually issued and delivered at different times.

Section 803. District Obligated to Refund Current Bonds Owned by Government Whenever Feasible; Defeasement Prohibited. So long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Current Bonds, if it appears to the Government that the District is able to refund such Current Bonds in whole or in part, by obtaining a loan for such purposes from responsible cooperative or private credit sources, or to sell bonds of the District in the open market, at reasonable rates and terms, for loans or bond issues for similar purposes and periods of time, the District will, upon request of the Government, obtain such loan and/or issue such bonds in sufficient amount to repay the Government and will take all such action as may be required in connection therewith.

In addition, so long as the Government is the Owner of any of the Current Bonds, the District shall not issue any bonds or other obligations for the purpose of defeasing or otherwise terminating the lien of the Current Bonds without immediately prepaying all of the then outstanding Current Bonds.

<u>Section 804. Authorization, Ratification and Confirmation of Approval and Execution of Various Documents.</u> The Commission hereby authorizes, approves, ratifies and confirms the previous action of the officers of the District in approving and executing various documents related to the financing of the Project, including the following:

- (a) Legal Services Agreement with Bond Counsel.
- (b) Legal Services Agreement with Local Counsel.
- (c) Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions of RD Letter of Conditions (RD Form 1942-46).
- (d) Loan Resolution (RD Form 1780-27).
- (e) Agreement for Engineering Services with the Engineers.

Section 805. Authorization of Condemnation to Acquire Easements and/or Sites. In the event that (a) any necessary deeds of easement to allow construction of the Project over the property of any property owner or (b) any necessary deed to the necessary site of any waterworks facility of the Project shall not be obtained through negotiation within ten (10) days after the date of adoption of this Resolution and in the event that (1) such waterworks lines cannot be located within the right-of-way of the State and/or County road involved; and/or (2) such waterworks facilities cannot be located on a site already owned by the District, Local Counsel is hereby authorized and directed to file condemnation actions to obtain such necessary rights-of-way and/or sites forthwith, without further authorization or direction from the District or the Commission. Local Counsel is further directed to follow the same condemnation procedure in the event that it becomes necessary, through change orders, line extensions and/or errors in the location of property lines and/or property owners, to obtain additional easements, rights-of-way and/or sites for completion of the Project and whenever the necessary deed is not obtained by negotiation at least ten (10) days prior to the date on which construction is contemplated in the respective easement, right-of-way and/or site.

The District further approves the payment from the funds available therefor allocated to the costs of the Project to pay any judgment award, or compromise, determined by Local Counsel with the acquiescence of the Commission, toward the costs of such easements, rights-of-way and/or sites; provided, in each instance, that the payment of such funds to satisfy any judgment, award or compromise must first be approved by the RD; and the Commission further determines that if and to whatever extent the funds available from the proceeds of the financing contemplated by this Resolution shall be inadequate to pay any judgment, award or compromise amount for such easements, rights-of-way and/or sites, or if the District is unable to obtain the approval of the RD for any such payment, the Commission shall take all reasonably necessary actions, within the powers and authority of the Commission, to make such additional amount available from all other available District resources.

Section 806. Authorization to File Required Financing Statements. In the event that it is determined by Bond Counsel or Local Counsel that the District is required to file any financing statements under the Kentucky Uniform Commercial Code in order to perfect the pledge of the gross revenues of the District's System as security for the Current Bonds, Bond Counsel and/or Local Counsel are hereby authorized to prepare and file with the appropriate officials such financing statements as they deem necessary.

ARTICLE 9. SALE OF CURRENT BONDS

<u>Section 901. Sale of Current Bonds.</u> The Current Bonds shall be offered publicly for sale upon the basis of sealed, competitive bids at such time as the Commission shall designate.

A suggested form of "Notice of Bond Sale", a suggested form of "Official Notice of Sale of Bonds" and a suggested form of "Bid Form", having been prepared in advance by Bond Counsel, and all of such documents having been found to be in satisfactory form, a copy of each is hereby ordered to be filed in the records of the Secretary with the Minutes of the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted. The Notice of Bond Sale shall be signed by the Secretary and may be used for the purpose of publishing notice of the sale of the Current Bonds. Copies of such documents shall be furnished to any interested parties who may request same.

In the event that there is no bid or that all bids are rejected, the District may readvertise the sale pursuant to this Resolution.

Section 902. Adjustment in Maturities, Prepayment Provisions and Other Dates, with Consent of Purchaser if Delivery is Delayed. In the event that delivery of the Current Bonds authorized herein is delayed for any reason and the District, with the consent of the Purchaser of the Current Bonds, determines it is in the District's best interest to change the maturities, the applicable prepayment date or any other dates, the District may adjust the same by a Resolution of the Commission approving the adjustments.

ARTICLE 10. CONCLUDING PROVISIONS

Section 1001. Covenant of District to Take All Necessary Action To Assure Compliance with the Code. In order to assure the Owners of the Current Bonds that such Current Bonds shall continue to be legal and that interest thereon will continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and exempt from all Kentucky income taxation, the District covenants to and with the Owners of the Current Bonds to take the following action:

- (a) The District will (1) take all actions necessary to comply with the provisions of the Code necessary to assure that interest on the Current Bonds will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes; (2) will take no actions which will violate any of the provisions of the Code; and (3) not use the proceeds of the Current Bonds for any purpose which will cause interest on the Current Bonds or on interim financing obligations, including, but not limited to the Note, issued pursuant to Section 302 hereof to become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.
- (b) The District hereby certifies that it does not reasonably anticipate that the total principal amount of "qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code which the District, or any subordinate entity of the District, will issue during the calendar year during which the Current Bonds are issued, will exceed \$10,000,000; and therefore the District hereby designates the Current Bonds and all interim financing obligations, including, but not limited to the Note, issued pursuant to Section 302 hereof as "qualified tax-exempt obligations".
- (c) The District further certifies that the Current Bonds and any and all interim financing obligations of the District are not "private activity bonds" within the meaning of the Code.
- (d) The District covenants and agrees to comply with the rebate requirements on certain excess earnings imposed by Section 148 of the Code, and in the event it is determined by the District, upon the advice of Bond Counsel, that the Construction Account, or any other Fund established hereunder, is subject to said rebate requirements and does in fact generate earnings from "non-purpose investments" in excess of the amount which said investments would have earned at a rate equal to the "yield" on the Current Bonds, plus any income attributable to such excess, there shall be established a separate and special fund with the Depository Bank, which fund shall be designated the "Excess Earnings and Rebate Fund", which shall be utilized for the collection and payment of any excess generated from investments and the remittance thereof to the United States of America on or before the anniversary of the fifth (5th) year from the date of the Current Bonds, and once every five (5) years thereafter until the final retirement of the Current Bonds; the last installment, to the extent required, to be made no later than sixty (60) days following the date on which funds sufficient for the complete retirement of the Current Bonds are deposited with any escrow agent. The District further covenants to file any and all reports, if any, as may be required to be filed with the Government with regard to the liability or non-liability of the District as to any such

rebate requirements and to maintain records in regard thereto for the period of time required by applicable Treasury regulations.

<u>Section 1002. Severability Clause.</u> If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be held invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution, which shall continue in full force and effect.

Section 1003. All Provisions in Conflict Repealed. All motions, resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Resolution, are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. It is hereby specifically ordered and provided that any proceedings heretofore taken for the issuance of other bonds of the District payable or secured in any manner by all or any part of the income and revenues of said System or any part thereof, and which have not been heretofore issued and delivered, are hereby revoked and rescinded, and none of such other bonds shall be issued and delivered. The District covenants to correct by appropriate proceedings any required procedure previously taken invalidly.

Section 1004. Effective Immediately Upon Adoption. This Resolution shall take effect and be effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted this August 2, 2024.

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

Chairman

(Seal of District)

/

Attest:

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Farmdale Water District and that the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of said District, signed by the Chairman of said District and attested under Seal by me as Secretary, at a properly convened meeting of said Board of Commissioners held on August 2, 2024, as shown by the official records of said District in my custody and under my control.

I further certify that said meeting was duly held in accordance with all applicable requirements of Kentucky law, including KRS 61.810, 61.815, 61.820 and 61.825, that a quorum was present at said meeting, that said Resolution has not been modified, amended, revoked or repealed, and that same is now in full force and effect.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, witness my signature as Secretary and the official Seal of the District this August 2, 2024.

(Seal of District)

EXHIBIT A
Schedule of Principal Payments

| Payment Due | Principal | Payment Due | Principal |
|-------------|-----------|-------------|-----------|
| January 1 | Payment | January I | Payment |
| 2026 | \$38,000 | 2046 | \$60,000 |
| 2027 | 38,000 | 2047 | 61,000 |
| 2028 | 39,000 | 2048 | 63,000 |
| 2029 | 40,000 | 2049 | 64,000 |
| 2030 | 41,000 | 2050 | 66,000 |
| 2031 | 42,000 | 2051 | 67,000 |
| 2032 | 43,000 | 2052 | 69,000 |
| 2033 | 44,000 | 2053 | 71,000 |
| 2034 | 45,000 | 2054 | 72,000 |
| 2035 | 46,000 | 2055 | 74,000 |
| 2036 | 47,000 | 2056 | 76,000 |
| 2037 | 49,000 | 2057 | 78,000 |
| 2038 | 50,000 | 2058 | 79,000 |
| 2039 | 51,000 | 2059 | 81,000 |
| 2040 | 52,000 | 2060 | 83,000 |
| 2041 | 53,000 | 2061 | 85,000 |
| 2042 | 55,000 | 2062 | 87,000 |
| 2043 | 56,000 | 2063 | 89,000 |
| 2044 | 57,000 | 2064 | 91,000 |
| 2045 | 59,000 | 2065 | 97,000 |

EXHIBIT B

(FORM OF FULLY REGISTERED BOND)

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2024

Interest Rate: %

\$

No. R-

| 1 | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|--|---|--|---|--|--|
| i | KNOW ALL PE | RSONS BY | THESE PRESI | ENTS: | | |
| Commis | | mmission" |), a public body | | | arough its Board of wealth of Kentucky, |
| the regis | | eof, or to its | registered assig | ns, solely fro | om the fund he | ereinafter identified, |
| | | | | DOLLARS | (\$ |), |
| on the fi | irst day of Janua | ry, in years | and installments | as follows: | | |
| Year | Principal | Year | Principal | Year | Principal | |
| | ne printer of the stered Owner] | Current Bor | nd will print the | maturities o | f the Current I | Bonds purchased by |
| of Janua until said be and b | time remaining u ary and July in ea d sum is paid, ex secome applicab | unpaid, at the ch year, beginned to the part as the part as the part hereto, but the part of the part | e Interest Rate s ginning with the provisions herein oth principal and | pecified abo first January after set fort interest bei | ve, semiannua or July after the th with respect ng payable, w | I principal sum from ally on the first days he date of this Bond, t to prepayment may ithout deduction for ica, at the address of |

the registered owner shown on the registration book of the District.

This Bond is issued by the District under and in full compliance with the Constitution and Statutes of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, including Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (collectively the "Act"), and pursuant to a duly adopted Bond Resolution of the District authorizing same (the "Current Bond Resolution"), to which Current Bond Resolution reference is hereby made for a description of the nature and extent of the security thereby created, the rights and limitations of rights of the registered owner of this Bond, and the rights, obligations and duties of the District, for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise provided) of the construction of extensions, additions and improvements to the existing waterworks system of the District (said existing waterworks system, together with said extensions, additions and improvements, being hereinafter referred to as the "System").

This Bond ranks on a parity as to security and source of payment with the outstanding Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2013, dated March 29, 2013 (the "Prior Bonds"). Accordingly, this Bond, together with any bonds ranking on a parity herewith, is payable from and secured by a pledge of the gross revenues to be derived from the operation of the System.

This Bond has been issued in full compliance with the Current Bond Resolution and this Bond, and any bonds ranking on a parity therewith that may be issued and outstanding under the conditions and restrictions of the Current Bond Resolution are and will continue to be payable from revenues which shall be set aside in a fund for that purpose and identified as the "Farmdale Water District USDA Bond Sinking Fund", described in the Current Bond Resolution.

This Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the District within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provisions or limitations and is payable solely out of the revenues of the System. As provided in the Current Bond Resolution, the District covenants that so long as any of the Current Bonds are outstanding, the System will be continuously owned and operated by the District as a revenue producing public undertaking within the meaning of the aforesaid Act for the security and source of payment of the Current Bonds and that the District will fix, and if necessary adjust, from time to time, such rates for the services and facilities of the System and will collect and account for the revenues therefrom sufficient to pay promptly the principal of and interest on the Current Bonds and all other bonds ranking on a parity therewith as may be outstanding from time to time, to pay the cost of operation and maintenance of the System and to provide for the depreciation thereof.

The District has reserved the right to issue additional bonds ranking on a parity as to security and source of payment with this Bond in order to complete the Project, and to finance future extensions, additions and improvements to the System, provided the necessary requirements of the Current Bond Resolution have been complied with by the District.

This Bond shall be registered as to principal and interest in the name of the owner hereof, after which it shall be transferable only upon presentation to the Secretary of the District as the Bond Registrar, with a written transfer duly acknowledged by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney, which transfer shall be noted upon this Bond and upon the registration book of the District kept for that purpose.

The District, at its option, shall have the right to prepay, on any interest payment date on and after January 1, 2033, in inverse chronological order of the installments due on this Bond, the entire principal amount of this Bond then remaining unpaid, or such lesser portion thereof, in a multiple of One Hundred Dollars (\$100), as the District may determine, at a price in an amount equivalent to the principal amount to be prepaid plus accrued interest to the date of prepayment, without any prepayment premium. Notice of such prepayment shall be given by registered mail to the registered owner of this Bond or its assignee, at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for prepayment. Notice of such prepayment may be waived with the written consent of the registered owner of this Bond.

So long as the registered owner of this Bond is the United States of America, or any agency thereof, the entire principal amount of this Bond, or installments in multiples of \$100, may be prepaid at any time in inverse chronological order of the installments due. Prepayments or extra payments on this Bond shall, after payment of interest, be applied to the installments last to become due hereunder and shall not affect the obligation of the District to pay the remaining installments in accordance with this Bond.

Upon default in the payment of any principal or interest payment on this Bond, or upon failure by the District to comply with any other provision of this Bond or with any provision of the Current Bond Resolution, the registered owner may, at its option, institute all rights and remedies provided by law or by said Current Bond Resolution.

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, and that the face amount of this Bond, together with all other obligations of the District, does not exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution or Statutes of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Farmdale Water District, by its Board of Commissioners, has caused this Bond to be executed by its Chairman, its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed, and attested by its Secretary, on the date of this Bond, which is

FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT

| | By |
|--------------------|----------|
| Attest: | Chairman |
| | |
| Secretary | |
| (Seal of District) | |

PROVISION FOR REGISTRATION

This Bond shall be registered on the registration book of the District kept for that purpose by the Secretary, as Bond Registrar, upon presentation hereof to said Secretary, who shall make notation of such registration in the registration blank, and this Bond may thereafter be transferred only upon written transfer acknowledged by the registered owner or its attorney, such transfer to be made on said book and endorsed hereon.

| Date of Registration | Name of | Signature of Bond Registrar |
|-------------------------|------------------|-----------------------------|
| Registration | Registered Owner | of Bond Registrar |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

ASSIGNMENT

| | eby assigned, without recourse and subject to all of i | ts |
|----------------------------|--|----|
| terms and conditions, unto | , this day of | _, |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | _ |
| | 2 | |
| | Ву: | |

EXHIBIT C

REQUISITION CERTIFICATE

Re: Farmdale Water District Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2024, in the principal amount of \$2,458,000

The undersigned hereby certify as follows:

| , | 27.70.71.11.11 |
|--|--|
| That they are the signate | ories required for construction and/or administrative draws |
| | ed by the Farmdale Water District (the "District"). |
| | A WING LOOP AND A STATE OF THE |
| | nd/or persons set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto are now |
| approved invoices attached hereto: | , itemized as set forth in said Exhibit A and as per |
| approved invoices attached hereto. | |
| That upon said amount | being lent to said District and/or obtained by said District |
| | and/or other sources, the undersigned approve such expen- |
| : [경기: [1] [1] [1] [1] [1] [1] [1] [1] [1] [1] | to said firms and/or persons, either directly or from amounts |
| deposit in the "Farmdale Water Distric | t Waterworks Construction Account". |
| 4. That we hereby certify t | hat we have carefully inspected the work and, as a result of |
| | nowledge and belief, the amounts shown in this Requisition |
| | been performed in accordance with the agreements between |
| the District and the parties requesting p | 하는 100mm (Color Francis Color Francis Color Francis Color Francis Color Francis Color Francis Color Francis Co |
| | |
| IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | witness the signature of the undersigned, this day of |
| ,20 | |
| Farmdale Water District | HMB Professional Engineers, Inc. |
| | and the second s |
| ByChairman | By Registered Professional Engineer |
| Chairman | Registered Professional Engineer |
| | State of Kentucky No. |
| Approved on | Approved on |
| Approved on | Approved on |
| USDA, Rural Development | Amount expended heretofore \$ |
| _ | |
| By | Amount approved herein |
| Authorized RD Official | Total |
| Approved on | Total |
| ripproved on | |

EXHIBIT A TO REQUISITION CERTIFICATE

Name of Entity/Person

Amount

Attachment #9

USDA Loan Interest Amortization Schedule

| | | | New | Interest | Interest |
|------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|----------|-----------|
| Year | Principal | Prin Pmt | Balance | Rate | Due |
| 2016 | 1,837,000 | 21,500 | 1,815,500 | 3.125% | 56,734.38 |
| 2017 | 1,815,500 | 22,500 | 1,793,000 | 3.125% | 56,031.25 |
| 2018 | 1,793,000 | 24,000 | 1,769,000 | 3.125% | 55,281.25 |
| 2019 | 1,769,000 | 24,500 | 1,744,500 | 3.125% | 54,515.63 |
| 2020 | 1,744,500 | 25,500 | 1,719,000 | 3.125% | 53,718.75 |
| 2021 | 1,719,000 | 26,500 | 1,692,500 | 3.125% | 52,890.63 |
| 2022 | 1,692,500 | 28,500 | 1,664,000 | 3.125% | 52,000.00 |
| 2023 | 1,664,000 | 28,000 | 1,636,000 | 3.125% | 51,125.00 |
| 2024 | 1,636,000 | 30,000 | 1,606,000 | 3.125% | 50,187.50 |
| 2025 | 1,606,000 | 31,500 | 1,574,500 | 3.125% | 49,203.13 |
| 2026 | 1,574,500 | 32,500 | 1,542,000 | 3.125% | 48,187.50 |
| 2027 | 1,542,000 | 34,000 | 1,508,000 | 3.125% | 47,125.00 |
| 2028 | 1,508,000 | 35,500 | 1,472,500 | 3.125% | 46,015.63 |
| 2029 | 1,472,500 | 37,000 | 1,435,500 | 3.125% | 44,859.38 |
| 2030 | 1,435,500 | 38,500 | 1,397,000 | 3.125% | 43,656.25 |
| 2031 | 1,397,000 | 40,000 | 1,357,000 | 3.125% | 42,406.25 |
| 2032 | 1,357,000 | 41,500 | 1,315,500 | 3.125% | 41,109.38 |
| 2033 | 1,315,500 | 43,500 | 1,272,000 | 3.125% | 39,750.00 |
| 2034 | 1,272,000 | 45,500 | 1,226,500 | 3.125% | 38,328.13 |
| 2035 | 1,226,500 | 47,000 | 1,179,500 | 3.125% | 36,859.38 |
| 2036 | 1,179,500 | 49,000 | 1,130,500 | 3.125% | 35,328.13 |
| 2037 | 1,130,500 | 51,500 | 1,079,000 | 3.125% | 33,718.75 |
| 2038 | 1,079,000 | 53,500 | 1,025,500 | 3.125% | 32,046.88 |
| 2039 | 1,025,500 | 55,500 | 970,000 | 3.125% | 30,312.50 |
| 2040 | 970,000 | 58,000 | 912,000 | 3.125% | 28,500.00 |
| 2041 | 912,000 | 60,000 | 852,000 | 3.125% | 26,625.00 |
| 2042 | 852,000 | 62,500 | 789,500 | 3.125% | 24,671.88 |
| 2043 | 789,500 | 65,500 | 724,000 | 3.125% | 22,625.00 |
| 2044 | 724,000 | 68,000 | 656,000 | 3.125% | 20,500.00 |
| 2045 | 656,000 | 71,000 | 585,000 | 3.125% | 18,281.25 |
| 2046 | 585,000 | 73,500 | 511,500 | 3.125% | 15,984.38 |
| 2047 | 511,500 | 77,000 | 434,500 | 3.125% | 13,578.13 |
| 2048 | 434,500 | 80,500 | 354,000 | 3.125% | 11,062.50 |
| 2049 | 354,000 | 83,500 | 270,500 | 3.125% | 8,453.13 |
| 2050 | 270,500 | 87,000 | 183,500 | 3.125% | 5,734.38 |
| 2051 | 183,500 | 90,000 | 93,500 | 3.125% | 2,921.88 |
| 2052 | 93,500 | 93,500 | - | 3.125% | - |
| | | 1,837,000 | | | 1,290,328 |

2/14/24, 1:26 PM cpap - Home



United States Department of Agriculture CPAP - Commercial Program Application Processing



CPAP - Bond Schedule Detail

| | Name of Borrower:Farmdale Water District | | | |
|--|--|--|---------|--|
| Amount of Loan | 2458000 | Annual Interest Rate | 0.02375 | |
| Number of Initial Interest Only Payments | 0 | Number of principal and/or Interest Payments | 40 | |
| Payment Frequency | Annual | This is a split payment bond. | No | |
| Principal Payment Units | 1000 | Interest Payment Units. | 1 | |

| Year | Period | Number | Payment | Interest | Principal | Balance |
|-------|--------|--------|----------------|----------------|----------------|---------|
| 2025 | 1 | 1 | 96377 | 58377 | 38000 | 2420000 |
| 2026 | 1 | 2 | 95475 | 57475 | 38000 | 2382000 |
| 2027 | 1 | 3 | 95572 | 56572 | 39000 | 2343000 |
| 2028 | 1 | 4 | 95646 | 55646 | 40000 | 2303000 |
| 2029 | 1 | 5 | 95696 | 54696 | 41000 | 2262000 |
| 2030 | 1 | 6 | 95722 | 53722 | 42000 | 2220000 |
| 2031 | 1 | 7 | 95725 | 52725 | 43000 | 2177000 |
| 2032 | 1 | 8 | 95703 | 51703 | 44000 | 2133000 |
| 2033 | 1 | 9 | 95658 | 50658 | 45000 | 2088000 |
| 2034 | 1 | 10 | 95590 | 49590 | 46000 | 2042000 |
| 2035 | 1 | 11 | 95497 | 48497 | 47000 | 1995000 |
| 2036 | 1 | 12 | 96381 | 47381 | 49000 | 1946000 |
| 2037 | 1 | 13 | 96217 | 46217 | 50000 | 1896000 |
| 2038 | 1 | 14 | 96030 | 45030 | 51000 | 1845000 |
| 2039 | 1. | 15 | 95818 | 43818 | 52000 | 1793000 |
| 2040 | 1 | 16 | 95583 | 42583 | 53000 | 1740000 |
| 2041 | 1 | 17 | 96325 | 41325 | 55000 | 1685000 |
| 2042 | 1 | 18 | 96018 | 40018 | 56000 | 1629000 |
| 2043 | 1 | 19 | 95688 | 38688 | 57000 | 1572000 |
| 2044 | 1 | 20 | 96335 | 37335 | 59000 | 1513000 |
| 2045 | 1 | 21 | 95933 | 35933 | 60000 | 1453000 |
| 2046 | 1 | 22 | 95508 | 34508 | 61000 | 1392000 |
| 2047 | 1 | 23 | 96060 | 33060 | 63000 | 1329000 |
| 2048 | 1 | 24 | 95563 | 31563 | 64000 | 1265000 |
| 2049 | 1 | 25 | 96043 | 30043 | 66000 | 1199000 |
| 2050 | 1 | 26 | 95476 | 28476 | 67000 | 1132000 |
| 2051 | 1 | 27 | 95885 | 26885 | 69000 | 1063000 |
| 2052 | 1 | 28 | 96246 | 25246 | 71000 | 992000 |
| 2053 | 1 | 29 | 95560 | 23560 | 72000 | 920000 |
| 2054 | 1 | 30 | 95850 | 21850 | 74000 | 846000 |
| 2055 | 1 | 31 | 96092 | 20092 | 76000 | 770000 |
| 2056 | 1 | 32 | 96287 | 18287 | 78000 | 692000 |
| 2057 | 1 | 33 | 95435 | 16435 | 79000 | 613000 |
| 2058 | 1 | 34 | 95558 | 14558 | 81000 | 532000 |
| 2059 | 1 | 35 | 95635 | 12635 | 83000 | 449000 |
| 2060 | 1 | 36 | 95663 | 10663 | 85000 | 364000 |
| 2061 | 1 | 37 | 95645 | 8645 | 87000 | 277000 |
| 2062 | 1 | 38 | 95578 | 6578 | 89000 | 188000 |
| 2063 | 1 | 39 | 95465 | 4465 | 91000 | 97000 |
| 2064 | 1 | 40 | 99303 | 2303 | 97000 | 0 |
| TOTAL | LS | | \$3,835,841.00 | \$1,377,841.00 | \$2,458,000.00 | |

Warning: This schedule is an estimate of payments. Rural Development calculates interest amounts and principle

Attachment #10

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

| represents all present transactions and t | f my knowledge and belief the inform those transactions occurring within the rmdale Water District | |
|--|--|--|
| parties that exceed \$25.00 in value. Fo include, all transactions and payments in made directly to or on behalf of: 1) the members of the Utility's board of compercent or greater ownership interest | n excess of \$25.00, except regular salary e Utility's current or former employees missioners or board of directors; 3) pe | , wages and benefits, ; 2) current or former rsons who have a 10 |
| employee, director, commissioner or per Utility or 5) a business enterprise in commissioner or person with a 10 per member of such person has an ownershi | erson with a 10 percent or greater own which any current or former Utility cent or greater ownership interest in t | nership interest in the employee, director, |
| Name of Related Party (Individual or Business) | Type of Service Provided By Related Party | Amount of Compensation |
| | | |
| | | |
| | 1000 | |
| Check this box if the Utility has no | related party transactions. | |
| Check box if additional transaction | s are listed on the supplemental page. | |
| Check box if any employee of the locommissioner, or any person with a 10 pemployee and the official to whom they supplemental page entitled "Employees | are related and the nature of the relatio | the Utility. The name of each |
| Jonathan Daily (Print Name) | (Signed) | |
| Sexpolum | | |

* "Family Member" means any person who is the spouse, parent, sibling, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of any current Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility; or is a dependent for tax purposes of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility or his or her spouse; or who is a member of the household of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility.

(Position/Office)

COUNTY OF Franklin Subscribed and sworn to before me by Jonathan Dailog (Name) this b day of June, 2025. NOTARY PUBLIC State-at-large KYNP62961

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

| represents all present transactions | est of my knowledge and belief the inforn and those transactions occurring within the Farmdale Water District | |
|--|---|---|
| nclude, all transactions and payme made directly to or on behalf of: members of the Utility's board of percent or greater ownership int employee, director, commissioner Utility or 5) a business enterpris | e. For the purpose of this statement, "relatents in excess of \$25.00, except regular salar. 1) the Utility's current or former employee commissioners or board of directors; 3) preferest in the Utility; 4) family members* or person with a 10 percent or greater ow se in which any current or former Utility percent or greater ownership interest in | ted party transactions" ry, wages and benefits, is; 2) current or former ersons who have a 10 of any current Utility mership interest in the ry employee, director, |
| Name of Related Party (Individual or Business) | Type of Service Provided By Related Party | Amount of Compensation |
| | | |
| | | |
| - | as no related party transactions. actions are listed on the supplemental page. | |
| ommissioner, or any person with a | f the Utility is a family member of the Utility's a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in they are related and the nature of the relation byees Related to Utility Officials." | the Utility. The name of |
| Scottie Wechder, | idese Scott les | what I |
| Charmar Position/Office) | | |

* "Family Member" means any person who is the spouse, parent, sibling, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of any current Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility; or is a dependent for tax purposes of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility or his or her spouse; or who is a member of the household of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility.

COUNTY OF Franklin Subscribed and sworn to before me by Scottie Working (Name) this D'day of Tune , 2025. NOTARY PUBLIC (State-at-Large KYNP6266)

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

| presents all present transactions and | f my knowledge and belief the inform those transactions occurring within the armdale Water District | |
|--|--|---|
| arties that exceed \$25.00 in value. For actude, all transactions and payments in hade directly to or on behalf of: 1) the nembers of the Utility's board of come ercent or greater ownership interest | or the purpose of this statement, "relat in excess of \$25.00, except regular salar e Utility's current or former employees missioners or board of directors; 3) pe t in the Utility; 4) family members* | ed party transactions" y, wages and benefits, s; 2) current or former ersons who have a 10 of any current Utility |
| tility or 5) a business enterprise in | erson with a 10 percent or greater own which any current or former Utility cent or greater ownership interest in ip interest. | y employee, director, |
| Name of Related Party (Individual or Business) | Type of Service Provided By Related Party | Amount of Compensation |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Check box if any employee of the ommissioner, or any person with a 10 p | ns are listed on the supplemental page. Utility is a family member of the Utility's percent or greater ownership interest in are related and the nature of the relation | chief executive officer the Utility. The name o |
| Eddie Harrod | (Signed) Lie X | and |
| Treasurer Position/Office) | | |

* "Family Member" means any person who is the spouse, parent, sibling, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of any current Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility; or is a dependent for tax purposes of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility or his or her spouse; or who is a member of the household of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility.

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

| COUNTY OF Franklin | |
|--------------------------------------|---|
| Subscribed and sworn to before me by | Eddie Harrod |
| this 6 day of June | ,20 <u>2</u> S. |
| | NOTARY PUBLIC State-at-Large KYN P62966 |

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

| | d those transactions occurring within the Farmdale Water District | past twenty-four (24 ("Utility") and related |
|---|---|--|
| nonths between | For the purpose of this statement, "relate | |
| clude, all transactions and payments | s in excess of \$25.00, except regulars | , wages and benefits |
| ade directly to or on behalf of: 1) t | the Utility's current or former employees; | current or forme |
| embers of the Utility's board of co | mmissioners or board of directors; 3) pe | rsons who have a 10 |
| ercent or greater ownership intere | est in the Utility; 4) family members* of | of any current Utility |
| nployee, director, commissioner or | person with a 10 percent or greater own in which any current or former Utility | ersnip interest in the |
| mmissioner or person with a 10 n | ercent or greater ownership interest in t | he Utility or a famil |
| ember of such person has an owners | ship interest. | 15. 5.00 4 000 E 2000 |
| | and I seem seems | |
| Name of Related Party | Type of Service Provided | Amount of |
| (Individual or Business) | By Related Party | Compensation |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | = |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Check this box if the Utility has r | no related party transactions. | |
| 4 | | |
| | no related party transactions. ions are listed on the supplemental page. | |
| Check box if additional transact | ions are listed on the supplemental page. | chief executive office |
| Check box if additional transact | ions are listed on the supplemental page. ne Utility is a family member of the Utility's | |
| Check box if additional transact Check box if any employee of the | ions are listed on the supplemental page. ne Utility is a family member of the Utility's Dipercent or greater ownership interest in | the Utility. The name |
| Check box if additional transaction Check box if any employee of the commissioner, or any person with a 10 mployee and the official to whom the | ions are listed on the supplemental page. ne Utility is a family member of the Utility's O percent or greater ownership interest in ey are related and the nature of the relation | the Utility. The name |
| Check box if additional transacti Check box if any employee of the commissioner, or any person with a 10 mployee and the official to whom the | ions are listed on the supplemental page. ne Utility is a family member of the Utility's O percent or greater ownership interest in ey are related and the nature of the relation | the Utility. The name |
| Check box if additional transact Check box if any employee of the ommissioner, or any person with a 10 mployee and the official to whom the upplemental page entitled "Employe | ions are listed on the supplemental page. The Utility is a family member of the Utility's of percent or greater ownership interest in the relation ey are related and the nature of the relation es Related to Utility Officials." | the Utility. The name Inship are listed on th |
| Check box if additional transact Check box if any employee of the ommissioner, or any person with a 10 employee and the official to whom the upplemental page entitled "Employe | ions are listed on the supplemental page. The Utility is a family member of the Utility's of percent or greater ownership interest in the ey are related and the nature of the relations of the | the Utility. The name Inship are listed on th |
| Check box if additional transact Check box if any employee of the commissioner, or any person with a 10 | ions are listed on the supplemental page. The Utility is a family member of the Utility's of percent or greater ownership interest in the relation ey are related and the nature of the relation es Related to Utility Officials." | the Utility. The name nship are listed on th |
| Check box if additional transact Check box if any employee of the ommissioner, or any person with a 10 mployee and the official to whom the upplemental page entitled "Employe | ions are listed on the supplemental page. The Utility is a family member of the Utility's of percent or greater ownership interest in the ey are related and the nature of the relations of the | the Utility. The name Inship are listed on th |
| Check box if additional transact Check box if any employee of the ommissioner, or any person with a 10 mployee and the official to whom the upplemental page entitled "Employe | ions are listed on the supplemental page. The Utility is a family member of the Utility's of percent or greater ownership interest in the ey are related and the nature of the relations of the | the Utility. The name nship are listed on th |

* "Family Member" means any person who is the spouse, parent, sibling, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild of any current Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility; or is a dependent for tax purposes of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility or his or her spouse; or who is a member of the household of any Utility employee, director, commissioner or person with a 10 percent or greater ownership interest in the Utility.

ARF FORM-3 (November 2013)

| COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY | |
|--------------------------------------|-------------------------|
| COUNTY OF Franklin | |
| Subscribed and sworn to before me by | Chris Ralph (Name) |
| this 11 day of June | _,20 <u>2 5</u> . |
| | Janie & Sander |
| | NOTARY PUBLIC KYNP62966 |

Attachment #11

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE FARMDALE WATER DISTRICT PROPOSING ADJUSTMENTS TO ITS WATER RATES AND CHARGES AND AUTHORIZING ITS CHAIRMAN TO FILE AN APPLICATION WITH THE PSC SEEKING APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED RATE ADJUSTMENT

WHEREAS, Farmdale Water District (District) is a water district created and organized under the provisions of KRS Chapter 74. The District is subject to the jurisdiction of the Kentucky Public Service Commission ("PSC");

WHEREAS, In its September 4, 2024 Order in Case No. 2022-00347, the PSC ordered the District to file an application for an adjustment to its rates no later than August 31, 2025;

WHEREAS, prudent financial management and compliance with PSC orders dictate that the District take appropriate action to adjust its water rates and charges before August 31, 2025; and

WHEREAS, KRS 278.180 and 807 KAR 5:076 provide the legal mechanism for the District to propose adjustments to its water rates and charges;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FARMDALE WATER DISTIRCT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The facts, recitals, and statements contained in the foregoing preamble of this Resolution are true and correct and are hereby affirmed and incorporated as a part of this Resolution.

Section 2. The District proposes to adjust its monthly water rates and charges as set forth in **Appendix A**, which is attached hereto and is incorporated herein by reference as a part of this Resolution. The proposed rates and charges set forth in **Appendix A** are subject to any minor adjustments that may be made by the PSC. The proposed rate adjustment shall not become effective until PSC approval has been obtained.

Section 3. The Chairman and Manager are hereby authorized and directed to prepare, execute, and file with the PSC, by utilizing the Alternative Rate Adjustment Procedure for Small Utilities set forth in 807 KAR 5:076, an Alternative Rate Filing ("ARF") Application, Tariff Sheets, and all other documents that may be required by the PSC.

Section 4. The Chairman, Manager, and all others to whom the President may delegate certain responsibilities are hereby further authorized and directed to take any and all other actions and to execute and deliver any and all other documents as may be reasonably necessary to implement this Resolution.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption.

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FARMDALE WATER DISTIRCT at a meeting held on June 6, 2025, signed by the Chairman, and attested by the Secretary.

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

SECRETARY

CERTIFICATION

I, Secretary of Farmdale Water District No. 1(the "District"), do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the District at a meeting properly held on June 2025, signed by the Chairman of the District, attested by me as Secretary, and now in full force and effect.

WITNESS my hand this day of June, 2025.

ECKETARY

APPENDIX A CURRENT AND PROPOSED RATES

Farmdale Water District

5/8" x 3/4" Meter Tap

| Monthly Charge | | Current | | Proposed | | Difference | | | |
|------------------------------------|----|---------|----|----------|----|------------|--------|--|--|
| First 2,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 23.93 | \$ | 29.59 | \$ | 5.66 | 23.65% | | |
| Next 3,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ | 0.01071 | \$ | 0.00205 | 23.67% | | |
| Next 5,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ | 0.00948 | \$ | 0.00181 | 23.60% | | |
| Over 10,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ | 0.00826 | \$ | 0.00158 | 23.65% | | |

<u>1" Meter Tap</u>

| Monthly Charge | Current | | Current | | Current | | Proposed | Differ | ence |
|------------------------------------|---------|---------|---------------|---------------|---------|--|--------------|------------|------|
| First 5,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 49.90 | \$ 61.70 | \$ 11.80 | 23.65% | | | | |
| Next 5,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00866 | \$ 0.01071 | \$ 0.00205 | 23.67% | | | | |
| Next 140,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ 0.00948 | \$ 0.00181 | 23.60% | | | | |
| Over 150,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ 0.00826 | \$ 0.00158 | 23.65% | | | | |

<u>4" Meter Tap</u>

| Monthly Charge | Current | | Current Proposed | | Difference | | |
|-------------------------------------|---------|---------|------------------|---------|----------------|--------|--|
| First 50,000 Gallons (Minimum Bill) | \$ | 400.01 | \$ | 494.63 | \$ 94.62 | 23.65% | |
| Next 100,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00767 | \$ | 0.00948 | \$ 0.00181 | 23.60% | |
| Over 150,000 gallons per gallon | \$ | 0.00668 | \$ | 0.00826 | \$ 0.00158 | 23.65% | |

Monthly Water Loss Reduction Surcharge

| Monthly Charge | Current | | Current Proposed | | Difference | | | |
|----------------|---------|---|------------------|------|------------|------|---------|--|
| Per Customer | \$ | - | \$ | 2.73 | \$ | 2.73 | 100.00% | |